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Tomson Group

Hospitality and
Leisure Industry
oK B RIS B

Tomson Shanghai Pudong
Golf Club
SR LR R SR

Hotel Inter-Continental
Pudong Shanghai
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Property Development

and Investment
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Industries

Tomson Riviera

Bk

PVC Pipes, Shanghai
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Tomson Riviera Garden
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Tomson Golf Villas and Garden
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Xingguo Garden
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Tomson Business Centre
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Tomson International
Trade Building
5 b 1 % B B

Tomson Waigaoqiao
Industrial Park
RO S TR I




Management Discussion and Analysis
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GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”) are
delighted to report a consolidated profit after taxation attributable
to shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$1,387.41
million (2008: HK$451.99 million) and a basic earnings per share
of HK$1.04 (2008: HK$0.34) for the year ended 31st December,
2009.

The progress in results for the year under review was principally
attributable to a gain on fair value changes of investment
properties of the Group of approximately HK$2,857.62 million
(2008: HK$17.54 million). If the changes in fair value of the
investment properties were disregarded, the Group’s profit before
taxation for the year ended 31st December, 2009 would amount to
approximately HK$333.23 million (2008: HK$1,087.83 million).
There was a decline in the profit before taxation of the Group for
the year under review since lesser revenue from sale of properties
in Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) could
be recognized in 2009 while an enormous amount of sale proceeds
from Phase 1 of Tomson Riviera Garden had been recognized in

2008 upon its completion of construction.

On the other hand, there was a sharp increase in taxation
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009 to
approximately HK$1,798.06 million (2008: HK$484.37 million),
mainly attributable to a provision for land appreciation tax of
approximately HK$626.40 million (2008: HK$349.56 million) in
respect of property development projects and a deferred tax charge
of approximately HK$1,184.45 million (2008: HK$4.38 million)
in respect of revaluation of investment properties of the Group in

the PRC.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
recommends a payment of a special dividend of 13.5 HK cents
per share for the year ended 31st December, 2009 (2008: final
dividend of 5.5 HK cents per share) to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 4th June, 2010 (the “Record Date”). The shareholders
will be given an option to elect to receive shares of the Company
credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of a part of or all of

the special dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).
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The payment of the special dividend and the Scrip Dividend
Scheme will be subject to (i) the approval of the proposed special
dividend at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on the Record Date; and (ii) The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting listing of and permission
to deal in the new shares to be allotted thereunder. For the purpose
of determining the number of new shares to be allotted under
the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the market value of new share will
be calculated as the average of the closing prices per share of the
Company traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including the Record Date. A circular
giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with a
form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for the
scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on Tuesday, 29th
June, 2010.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Property development and investment in Shanghai, the PRC was
the core business and the major source of profit of the Group for

the year ended 31st December, 2009.

During the year of 2009, property investment became the
primary profit maker of the Group and recorded a contribution of
approximately HK$2,995.68 million (2008: HK$54.80 million)
while property development and trading was the second profit
contributor to the Group and delivered a profit of approximately
HK$216.18 million (2008: HK$1,064.06 million) to the Group’s
annual results. Securities trading activities of the Group ranked
the third in term of profit contribution amongst the operating
segments of the Group during the year under review and recorded
a profit of approximately HK$23.50 million (2008: loss of
approximately HK$32.74 million) while the Group received
dividends from its long-term equity investments of approximately
HK$2.56 million (2008: HK$36.60 million) during the same
period.
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On the other hand, leisure activities of the Group reported a loss
of approximately HK$13.50 million (2008: HK$5.03 million)
while the Group shared a profit of approximately HK$1.06 million
(2008: HK$11.05 million) from its hotel operation for 2009. In
addition, industrial operations recorded a loss of approximately
HK$4.30 million (2008: profit of approximately HK$6.50

million) to the Group’s annual results for 2009.

Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment in Shanghai, being
the principal activity of the Group, generated total revenue
of approximately HK$526.99 million and accounted for
approximately 75% of the gross proceeds from operations of the
Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009. In addition, a
net gain on disposal and fair value changes of the investment
properties of the Group of approximately HK$2,950.18 million
was recorded during the year under review. Tomson Riviera was
the prime revenue generator and source of profit of the Group in
2009.

Tomson Riviera

Tomson Riviera is the key residential development of the Group
and comprises four residential towers erected along the riverfront
of Lujiazui of Pudong and overlooking the Bund. There is a
total residential gross floor area of approximately 117,400 square
meters. In view of favourable market sentiment in the luxury
property market, the Board has adjusted its business strategy
about Tomson Riviera. In addition to Tower A, the Group began
to launch Tower C, providing relatively smaller units in the
project, for sale in the second half of June 2009 and substantial
re-decoration works in Tower C were carried out in the second half
of 2009 for further upgrading its quality. In this connection, apart
from Tower B being earmarked as investment property for leasing
purpose, all the unsold units of the three other residential towers

are now classified as properties held for sale.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009, recognized revenue
from sale and leasing of the project, pursuant to the accounting
standards, amounted to approximately HK$289.98 million and
accounted for approximately 41% of the total gross proceeds from
operations of the Group. In addition, during the year under review
and according to the accounting standards adopted by the Group,
a gain on fair value changes of Towers B and C, being classified as
investment properties at the time of revaluation, of approximately
HK$2,848.98 million was recorded while a net gain on disposal of
certain units of Tower C, being classified as investment property
at the time of sale, of approximately HK$92.50 million, after
deducting their revaluation value, was recognized. Besides, a
sale deposit of the project of approximately HK$204.99 million
was credited at the year end date of 2009 and is expected to be
recognized in the results of the Group in 2010.

As at 31st December, 2009, approximately 38% of the residential
gross floor area of Towers A and C were sold and approximately
44% of the residential gross floor area of Tower B was leased.
Additional sales and leases were recorded in the first quarter of
2010.

Tomson Riviera Garden

Tomson Riviera Garden, a low-rise residential project of the
Group adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club in Huamu
District of Pudong, is being developed by two phases. The Group
holds a 70% interest in the project.
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Construction of Phase 1 of the project was completed and all the
172 residential units of a total residential gross floor area for sale
in value of around 52,900 square meters were sold. Sale proceeds
from Phase 1 of the project of approximately HK$126.92 million
were recognized in the annual results of the Group for the year of
2009 and accounted for approximately 18% of the gross proceeds

from operations of the Group for the year under review.

Phase 2 of the residential project comprises 103 units of
townhouses and 16 units of single houses of a total residential
gross floor area for sale in value of approximately 36,700 square
meters. Construction of Phase 2 is scheduled for completion
in 2010. All the townhouses were pre-sold in 2009 and the
management is planning to launch the single houses for pre-sale at

appropriate time in 2010.
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As at 31st December, 2009, a sum of receipts in advance of
approximately HK$1,340.22 million was credited to the Group
and is expected to be recognized in the annual results of the Group
for the year of 2010 subject to the schedule of handover after

completion of the construction.

On the other hand, a commercial property of gross floor area of
approximately 6,100 square meters is being constructed and was
pre-sold in March 2010. Sale proceeds of approximately HK$220
million are expected to be recognized in the annual results of the

Group for the year of 2010.

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden have been developed by phases
around the periphery of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club since
1996. During the year ended 31st December, 2009, sale proceeds
generated from these two projects accounted for approximately 3%
of the total gross proceeds from operations of the Group. Only a

few units of these projects are now available for sale.
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Xingguo Garden

Apart from holding less than 10 car parks for sale, all the
residential gross floor area of Xingguo Garden, the sole residential

development of the Group in Puxi, has already been sold out.
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Commercial and Industrial Buildings

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s commercial
and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, comprising Tomson
Commercial Building, Tomson International Trade Building,
Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park and the commercial podium
of Tomson Business Centre, provided a steady recurrent revenue
to the Group and accounted for approximately 11% of the gross

proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under review.

Land at Jinqiao-Zhangjiang District

The Company obtained the shareholders’ approval on a
supplemental agreement in respect of an acquisition of land use
rights of a plot of land located at Jingiao-Zhangjiang District,
Pudong at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
in June 2009. Completion of the acquisition is conditional upon
the confirmation and approval of the filings of relevant documents
to the relevant government department in the PRC which have
not been obtained. Meanwhile, the parties to the supplemental
agreement are in the course of restructuring the terms of the
transaction, which, if consummated, may constitute a connected
transaction for the Company and an announcement will be made
by the Company in accordance with the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange accordingly.

Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club generated revenue of
approximately HK$90.26 million, being about 13% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group, for the year under review.
Performance of both golfing activities and sale of membership
debentures has shown an improvement and the operation is a
steady source of revenue to the Group. The operation recorded
a sound increase in revenue in 2009, however, after taking into
account a provision for land use tax for the golf course, a loss
of approximately HK$13.50 million for the year of 2009 was

reported.
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Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong Shanghai

Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong Shanghai, situated in Lujiazui of
Pudong, Shanghai, continued to experience pressure on occupancy
and achieved an average occupancy rate of 54% in 2009. There
was a drop in the revenue and profit of the hotel operation under
the serious impact from the global financial turmoil and Human
Swine influenza as well as fierce competition arisen from an
increased supply of high-grade hotels for catering for Shanghai
World Expo 2010. In this connection, the Group, having a 50%
interest in the hotel, only shared a thin profit of approximately
HK$1.06 million from the hotel operation.

3 ST B B K

57 7 I 96 YR BRI SR W 2 T R 35 B U PR
K IE 2 AR M2 R T i BT
HEPE 2 P AAE R F54% o BN 2 BRER &
Al e NG R 2 R 2 DL R
WA T F— A L A T G = AR
JIE A 1R T AT A 2 SRS T S 2 e
Ndis B T B e R > A EARIEEA L
TR S VT35 B B K T 2 50900 5 > (AR 3%
T S5 016 491,060,000 7T 2 S 3 1] o

Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong Shanghai |- i 8 V1. %5 B 9 B K i b

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club #5 Fi L #§ i 3 5 8 KRR &

¥
&
2
&
()
(=]
(=}
[\
g
=]
(=¥
L’
&
=
=
=]
(-]
<

g
&
=
<
E
&
HH
8
=
3
E
-
oy
=
]
<]
=]
2
£
=

12




&
8
=]
=}
@
=]
(=3
<
£
2.
e
(=%
§
R
i
E
2
bt
»
&

WAty 6007 110doy [enuuy |

13

Management Discussion and Analysis

BPL Kt in B 5y B

Major Investments in Shanghai
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Industrial Operations

To complement its principal investment in the property sector,
the Group holds a 58% interest in an operation of manufacturing
PVC pipes and fittings in Shanghai. The manufacturing operation
accounted for approximately 6% of the gross proceeds from
operations of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009.
Suffering from a reduction of export under the impact of the
worldwide financial crises and relinquishing certain long-distance
markets due to increasing transportation cost, the turnover of the
operation dropped during the year under review. Though there was
a rise in gross profit margin and the operation made an operating
profit, it reported a loss of approximately HK$4.30 million during
the year of 2009 after taking account of a provision for bad and

doubtful debts.

On the other hand, the Group has completed a disposal of its
entire 25% equity interest in an operation of manufacturing ready-
mixed concrete in Shanghai and a gain of approximately HK$3.19

million was recognized in 2009.

Securities Trading

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong
Kong to diversify its business portfolio and maximize its return
to cash balance. Securities trading of the Group accounted for
approximately 6% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group for the year under review. Taking into account an
unrealized gain on changes in fair value of the trading securities of
approximately HK$19.04 million, the segment of securities trading
of the Group reported a net gain of approximately HK$23.50

million for the year under review.
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Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 9.8% interest in the issued capital of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong, and a 13.5%
interest in the registered capital of an associated company of RHL
established in the PRC. Both companies are principally engaged
in property development and investment in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech
Park, Pudong, Shanghai. Dividends of approximately HK$2.56
million were received and a gain on changes in fair value of the
long-term securities investments of approximately HK$34.77
million was credited to the investment reserve of the Group during

the year under review.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group’s capital expenditure and investments for the year
ended 31st December, 2009 were funded by cash on hand,

operating revenue and income from investing activities.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$2,728.66 million.
During the year under review, the Group achieved a net cash
inflow of approximately HK$134.38 million and HK$1,147.38
million from its operations and investing activities respectively.
After taking into account a net cash outflow of approximately
HK$68.17 million from its financing activities, the Group
recorded a net cash inflow of approximately HK$1,213.59 million
for the year under review (2008: net cash outflow of approximately
HK$212.64 million). The net cash inflow in 2009 was mainly
attributable to the sale proceeds and deposits from sale of property

development projects of the Group in Shanghai.
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The Group maintains a conservative approach in financing
and treasury management and did not employ any financial
instruments. The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December,
2009 amounted to approximately HK$330.57 million (2008:
HK$385.62 million), equivalent to 3.57% (2008: 4.91%) of the
equity attributable to owners of the Company at the same date. All
of the borrowings were bank loans under security and were subject
to floating interest rates. Of those borrowings, 3% were due for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting period,
21% were repayable more than one year but not exceeding two
years from the end of the reporting period while the rest was due
for repayment more than two years but within five years from the

end of the reporting period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s capital
commitments in relation to expenditure on properties under
development, which were contracted but not provided for,
amounted to approximately HK$431.68 million (2008:
HK$145.09 million). The Group anticipates funding those
commitments from its future operating revenue, bank borrowings

and other sources of finance where appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group recorded a current ratio of
2.51 times (2008: 2.52 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities
to equity attributable to the owners of the Company) of 63.80%
(2008: 35.47%). There was no significant change in the current
ratio. The sharp rise in the gearing ratio was mainly resulted from
an increase in receipts in advance regarding the pre-sale deposits
of Tomson Riviera Garden, which were classified under current
liabilities in the financial statements, and an increase in provision
for both current income tax and deferred taxation, resulted from
the gain on disposal and fair value changes of the investment

properties of the Group, during the year.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2009, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$736.54 million (2008:
HK$887.30 million) were pledged to banks to secure bank loans of
the Group.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi and the liabilities are well covered by the assets,
the management therefore expects that the change in value of
Renminbi will not have any adverse effect on the Group since
Renminbi has generally been perceived as having appreciation in
value relative to Hong Kong Dollars. On the other hand, all of the
other assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in either
Hong Kong Dollars or United States Dollars; hence, the Group

does not anticipate any material foreign exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group had a contingent liability
of US$3 million in respect of a provision of a guarantee to
indemnify the management company of Hotel Inter-Continental
Pudong Shanghai a part of the fund paid for hotel renovation and
system upgrading. The Board is of the opinion that it would be
unlikely for the Group to suffer any material financial loss as a
result of giving the aforesaid guarantee. Details of the contingent
liabilities are shown in Note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the year under review on page 140.

PROSPECTS

The Central Government of the PRC has recently shown grave
concern on the property sector and promulgated a number of
measures to regulate market activities, it is believed that it will
foster healthy growth of the real estate market of the PRC in
long run. In addition, the Board is optimistic to the sustainable
economic growth of the PRC though there is doubt whether the
global economy has been recovered yet. In view of growing wealth
and demand for better living condition of citizens in the PRC, the
Group has faith in the demand for high-end residence and will

keep focusing on luxury residential market therein.
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Tomson Riviera and Tomson Riviera Garden will be the key
projects and the principal sources of profit of the Group in 2010.
Apart from continuing the investment in Shanghai, the Group will
closely monitor the market development of the real estate market
in the PRC and expand its property development and investment
business to other cities in the PRC with growth potential at

appropriate time.

Under the current macro-economic situation, the management
will be cautious to manage the Group’s existing business segments
and also actively explore other profitable investment opportunities
to diversify the business portfolio and to strengthen the financial

position of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group engaged over 900 employees
in total in its various offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Taiwan
excluding those associates and jointly controlled entities. The total
emoluments paid to staff and directors of the Group during the
year under review amounted to approximately HK$66.61 million.
Remuneration and benefit packages are generally structured with
reference to market terms together with individual responsibilities,
performance and qualifications. Discretionary bonus may be paid
basing on individual contribution. In addition, the Company has
established a share option scheme pursuant to which directors and
employees of the Group are eligible for being granted options to

subscribe for shares in the capital of the Company.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
profound gratitude to the management and all the staff members
of the Group for their dedication to the Group and perseverance

over the years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 13th April, 2010
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard
and procedures which emphasize a quality management,

transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2009, except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this
is a deviation from the Code, dual role leadership provides
the Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”)
with a strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective operation of the business. The Board is of the view
that there is an adequate balance of power. The Company’s
daily business management is shared amongst Madam Hsu
and other members of the executive committee of the Board.
Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board or appropriate committees of the
Board;

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors of
the Company are appointed for a specific term, nevertheless,
they are subject to retirement and re-election at regular
intervals at annual general meetings according to the Articles

of Association of the Company (the “Articles”); and

(c) the Directors of the Company had not been subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years,
in contrast to the code provisions of the Code, until
amendments to the Articles were approved at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 5th June, 2009 and

the relevant code provision has been complied since then.
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THE BOARD

The Board is composed of seven members, including four
executive Directors, Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman), Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, and three independent non-
executive Directors, Madam Tung Wai Yee, Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar and Mr Lee Chan Fai.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles in the Board
and its committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and

Officers on pages 29 to 32.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
represent nearly a half of the Board and one of them has the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received an annual
written confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers all of the independent non-executive

Directors to be independent.

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The principal functions of the Board
are to formulate strategy, to consider and approve the Group’s
major corporate matters, to monitor and control significant
operational and financial matters of the Group. The independent
non-executive Directors have contributed valuable independent

views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman of the Board in setting the agenda for the
regular meetings and all Directors are consulted to include any
matters in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying board papers are
given to all Directors in a timely manner before the appointed date
of each regular Board meeting. Drafts and final versions of minutes
of those regular Board meetings are circulated to the Directors for

comment and record respectively within a reasonable time after
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each meeting. During the year of 2009, four regular meetings were
held by the Board and the Vice-Chairman of the Board had an
annual interchange with the independent non-executive Directors

of the Company without the other executive Directors present.

The Board has established an executive committee, an audit
committee and a remuneration committee (collectively the
“Committees”) with clear written terms of reference to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing
the Board’s responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering corporate strategy, annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and the
Committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
Committees have to report regularly to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations. The management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board

and the Committees.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s business, including relevant rules
and regulations. The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable
the Directors to seek independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to

discharge their duties.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate

activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference
in June 2005. The Executive Committee comprises all the
executive Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng,
Mr Tong Albert, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Chuang Hsiao-
Chen, and Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive
Committee. The Executive Committee may convene meetings as
it considers necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any
matters concerning the day-to-day management of the business of
the Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the Board

from time to time.
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Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
was established by the Board with specific written terms
of reference in June 2005. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
website. The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of its Directors and senior
management and to determine specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management of the Company
while the remuneration of any member of the Remuneration
Committee shall be determined by the Board. Madam Tung Wai
Yee, Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar and Mr Lee Chan Fai, being all
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, and Mr
Tong Albert, an executive Director of the Company, are members
of the Remuneration Committee while Madam Tung Wai Yee acts

as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Two Remuneration Committee’s meetings were held during 2009
for considering remuneration package of an executive Director
of the Company and annual review of the remuneration policy
and packages for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company. Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2009 are set out in

Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements on page 108.

Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has already
been set up by the Board with written terms of reference. The
Audit Committee is composed of all the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu
Ping, Oscar, Madam Tung Wai Yee and Mr Lee Chan Fai. The
Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who
possesses appropriate professional accounting qualifications as

required under the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required to
monitor integrity of the financial statements of the Company, to
review significant financial reporting judgements, to evaluate the
overall effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
frameworks of the Group, and to oversee the relationship with the
Company’s auditor (the “Auditor”). The terms of reference of the

Audit Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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During the year of 2009, the Audit Committee held three
meetings for reviewing the interim and annual results as well
as the financial reporting matters of the Group, evaluating the
internal control and risk management system of the Group, and
considering the engagement of the Auditor and provision of non-

audit services by the Auditor.

Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Directors at the regular meetings
of the Board and the meetings of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee held during the year ended 31st December,
2009 is set out below:

REFFNFEN EEZEFIETT =
UCEr k- LA B AR 42 119 o S0 4 B2 SE AR LA
Lo SV 55 P SR et A R I oA S B
JR\ B B A DL K 75 R A R 2 R
Lo v R R 4 14 19 JF 7 AZ IR S

il Rl 8%

AR EFEREE_FFIFET A=+~
CRIRCIEAANE 2 Pa & Sop thof SROVIE
MZEEMFLE B GG R MR
LU

Number of meetings attended/held

Cil B2 AEEH
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee
E% 3] HMEHE HBZHE
Executive Directors PAr g
Madam Hsu Feng [ 414 N/AA 8 N/AA
(Chairman of the Board and Managing Director) (3 % Jij T i # # F A HE)
Mr Tong Albert ZERCIP S 4/4 12 N/AARE
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (FH i L)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles U e 414 N/AA 7 N/AA 8
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen IR SEE 4/4 N/AA 7 N/AA
Independent Non-Executive Directors B AT
Madam Tung Wai Yee EERLL 4/4 2/2 3/3
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FWZ 5 & L)
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RI6T A 414 202 3/3
(Chairman of the Audir Committee) (HEZRELR)
Mr Lee Chan Fai 2 BN S 4/4 212 313

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles, new Directors could be elected by the
Company or appointed by the Board. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company in the case of filling a casual vacancy or
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company in
the case of an addition to the Board and the retiring Director shall

be eligible for re-election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination committee
pursuant to recommended best practices of the Code and the
Board is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience
of its members), and identifying, selecting and considering any
appointment of its own members and considering nomination of
those retiring members for re-election by the shareholders in the
general meetings. The Board is also responsible for assessing the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive
orientation package, including the latest information of the Group,
induction into his responsibilities and duties and other related

regulatory requirements.

During the year under review, no new members were appointed
to the Board and at a regular Board meeting which was attended
by all the Directors of the Company, all retiring members were
nominated for re-election at the 2009 annual general meeting of

the Company.

CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant employees
(the “Code of Practice”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”).

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company,
ecach of whom has confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of Practice

throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective
system of internal control is maintained within the Group in order
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
The Company has adopted a code on internal control applicable
to the Group in terms of financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions since 2005. The code on
internal control is reviewed regularly and modified pursuant to

operational requirements of the Group.

The Audit Committee has been authorized by the Board to review
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
regularly and a meeting was held in 2009 for that purpose. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied
that on the whole, the Group has complied with all the applicable
provisions of the Group’s code on internal control throughout the
year ended 31st December, 2009 and considers that the Group’s

internal control system was effective and adequate.

The Board also considers that, after a review made by the Audit
Committee, the resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function
are adequate, and their training programmes and budgets are

sufficient.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for each financial period. In preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st
December, 2009, the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; have made judgements and
estimates that were prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the

financial statements on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form
an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial
statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2009

is set out in the independent Auditor’s report on pages 52 and 53.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to
the Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December,
2009 amounted to approximately HK$2,622,000 and HK$32,000
respectively. The non-audit services provided during the year were

taxation services.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. The Chairman of the Board and the
majority of the Directors (including a member of the Audit
Committee and chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
participated in the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company
to answer questions from the sharecholders. In addition, at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 5th
June, 2009 for considering a connected transaction relating to a
supplemental agreement on the acquisition of land use rights in
Pudong, Shanghai, a majority of the Board members (including
a member of an independent committee of the Board formed for
that transaction) were available to answer questions relating to the

transaction.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have
a timely and updated information of the Group, the Company
has set up its own website at http://www.tomson.com.hk
where the corporate information, interim and annual reports,
announcements, circulars, business development and other

information of the Company are posted.

A% S S e R AT e AR R A A 1Y &6
o SRS A B R R B R L IR T
SHAEEMBEE _FFNAFET_A=1—
H Lk 47 B2 A5 W 5 4k 3R 10 28 L RO B 52 2
5553 I 8 57 A% BRI A e

e S i S 1 <2

WERZE CEEZNEST A=+ B IREE
A% B 1) AN S TR At 2 S A RN I % A% IR
BT A 2 B 4 B4 552,622,000 7T
32,0009 I © i 4F B 7R $2 it 2 IR B RS T
ol 5 IR 75

BB o 2 i

R IB R AR (RARA L R 2 R
SRR ) B 2 R A AR I - R
Jey T (R OB A (L L A &
HE - AMARFMEREG TR 20T
AT R F UL R AR R g > DL
MR Z B[] o AN > FEA N AL F TS
AN T H J 75 RE A R W 6 T B IR R
< R Rtk < B b
AT Z ORI & b #F R RO R B
(L4 b sZ JE AL By T L 2 R R L % B
A A ) MR T &k LR A B % IH AL
by Z AR o

T 1A T o BRA 2 ) SRR 2 e A
A ) B SR T IR R A A 4R ) 2 d b R > AR
23 A ELBSL A v > A3k 2y heep:/ /www.comson.
com.hl M A H BB AN R 2 AFEER
o A ML T
FoAbE R -



Corporate Governance Report
e g E

CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribution to the well-being of
the societies. During the year under review, the Group has made
charitable endowments for, inter alia, disaster relief, education
purpose, mental health promotion, children welfare and communal
welfare. Donations were made to various worldwide and local
charitable organizations including World Vision Hong Kong and
ORBIS.

To provide assistance to the victims of the disaster caused by a
typhoon that ravaged Taiwan in August 2009, the Group has
donated NTD5 million soon after the tragedy.

The Company has also re-enrolled the “Heart to Heart Project”
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups in
2009, to sponsor service projects proposed by volunteer groups
of those schools enrolled under the project so as to engage youth
volunteers to serve the community for contribution to social

development.

Apart from the above, the Group has arranged for a donation of
a total amount of HK$2.5 million to The Chinese University of
Hong Kong to establish non-local scholarships, namely “Tomson
Group Scholarships”, for students from the Mainland China for

four academic years since 2005.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 59, has been a director of the Company
and its subsidiaries since January 1990. She was appointed as
Managing Director of the Company in December 2001 and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also elected
as Chairman of the Board in December 2006. She has over 10
years’ experience in film production, and in property development
and investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has been
engaged in the property development and leisure activities in the

Mainland China in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert, who is Vice-
Chairman of the Board and executive Director of the Company,
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, who is executive Director of the
Company. All of them have been appointed directors of E-Shares
Investments Limited (“E-Shares”) with effect from 10th February,
2010. Both of Madam Hsu and Mr Tong Albert are directors
of King China Holdings Limited (“King China”) and executive
directors of a listed company in Hong Kong, Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”). Madam Hsu is also the owner of King China
and a substantial shareholder of RHL, and has formally become
the owner of E-Shares with effect from 17th December, 2009.
E-Shares, King China and RHL are substantial shareholders of
the Company under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

“SFO”).

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Madam Hsu together with her
parties acting in concert, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, are interested and taken to be interested in a total of
657,581,372 shares in the capital of the Company (including share

options).

Mr Tong Albert, aged 27, has been appointed an executive
Director of the Company since December 2001 and a member
of the executive committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since June 2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of
the Board in December 2006. He has joined the Group and taken
up directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since March
2001. He has participated in the Group’s business development,
corporate management, property trading and securities investment

for years.
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Mr Tong Albert is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company, and the younger
brother of Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, executive Director of the
Company. All of them have been appointed directors of E-Shares
with effect from 10th February, 2010. Both of Mr Tong Albert and
Madam Hsu are directors of King China and executive directors of

RHL. He is also deemed to be a substantial shareholder of RHL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Albert together with his
parties acting in concert, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Chi
Kar Charles, are interested and taken to be interested in a total of
657,581,372 shares in the capital of the Company (including share

options).

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 29, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since October 2008. He has joined the
Group since December 2000 and has participated in property
trading and business management of the Shanghai office of the
Group. He is the Executive Associate General Manager of the
Shanghai office of the Group and acts as a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company. He now principally engages in
property development and trading business in the Mainland

China.

He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and
Managing Director of the Company, and the elder brother of Mr
Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive Director
of the Company. All of them have been appointed directors of
E-Shares with effect from 10th February, 2010. Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles is deemed to be a substantial shareholder of RHL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles together
with his parties acting in concert, Madam Hsu Feng and Mr
Tong Albert, are interested and taken to be interested in a total of
657,581,372 shares in the capital of the Company (including share

options).
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Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, aged 62, has joined the Group since
May 1993 and has been appointed a Director of the Company
since April 1998 and a member of the executive committee of the
Board since June 2005. He now acts as an executive Director of
the Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He is a director and the general manager of Tomson
Golf (Shanghai) Limited, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and is engaged in the operation of Tomson Shanghai
Pudong Golf Club and the development of Tomson Golf Villas
in Pudong, Shanghai. He has extensive experience in sport and
recreational activities and has been engaged in management of the
golf club and development of golf villas in the Mainland China in

recent years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Madam Tung Wai Yee, aged 65, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since February 1994. She
has acted as a member of the audit committee of the Board since
April 1999 and was appointed the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005. She was an independent

non-executive director of RHL up to January 2003.

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 45, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and is the

sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$99,600 to HK$102,000 with effect from Ist January, 2010,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.
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Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 47, has been appointed an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the
Board since December 2005. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects and is qualified as a Registered Architect in
Hong Kong and a First Class Registered Architect in the Mainland
China. Mr Lee has acted as a director of Marco Asia Limited and
J&P Architects Limited since 1990’s and has been appointed as
a director of JSP Architects Limited since 2008. He has extensive

experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$99,600 to HK$102,000 with effect from Ist January, 2010,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2009 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 43, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998
and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company
since August 2005.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 51, joined the Group in 1990. He was
appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in September
1999.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased
to present its Report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(altogether the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2009

and the independent Auditor’s report thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year
were property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
activities, manufacturing of PVC pipes, securities trading and

investment holding.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company while the principal activities and other
particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed
out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
148 to 152.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results and financial position for the year
ended 31st December, 2009 are set out on pages 54 to 154.
An analysis by operating segments is set out in Note 9 to the

consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 104.

No interim dividend was paid during the year under review (2008:

Nil).

The Board recommends a payment of a special dividend of 13.5
HK cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2009
(2008: final dividend of 5.5 HK cents per share) to sharcholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on Friday, 4th June, 2010 (the “Record Date”). The shareholders
will be given an option to elect to receive shares of the Company
credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of a part of or all of

the special dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The payment of the special dividend and the Scrip Dividend
Scheme will be subject to (i) the approval of the proposed special
dividend at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on the Record Date; and (ii) The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
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Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) granting listing of and permission
to deal in the new shares to be allotted thereunder. For the purpose
of determining the number of new shares to be allotted under
the Scrip Dividend Scheme, the market value of new share will
be calculated as the average of the closing prices per share of the
Company traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including the Record Date. A circular
giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with a
form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for the
scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on Tuesday, 29th
June, 2010.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 2nd June, 2010 to Friday, 4th June, 2010, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the

Company will be effected.

In order to qualify for the proposed 2009 special dividend, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.

on Tuesday, 1st June, 2010 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the Group’s five largest customers
contributed to 42.68% of the Group’s gross proceeds from
operations with the largest customer accounting for 15.52% of
the Group’s gross proceeds from operations while 80.09% of the
Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers with the largest supplier accounting for 46.23% of the

Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% interest in the Company’s issued share capital) have any

interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group donated
approximately HK$2,196,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to approximately HK$59,219,000 (2008:
HK$15,319,000) while disposed of and wrote off fixed assets with
an aggregate net book value of approximately HK$1,319,283,000
(2008: HK$7,167,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements on

pages 114 to 117.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either
under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out

on pages 156 to 162.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31st December, 2009 are
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements on page
138.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

Interest expenses of approximately HK$3,840,000 (2008:
HK$4,699,000) attributable to properties under development were
capitalised by the Group during the year.

RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st
December, 2009 amounted to approximately HK$316,510,000
(2008: HK$258,664,000).
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The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the
Group as at 31st December, 2009 amounting to approximately
HK$5,165,733,000 are to be carried forward. Other movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are shown
in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 60 and

page 147 respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, there was no
purchase, sale or redemption made by the Company, or any of its

subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.

SHARE CAPITAL

By an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 5th June,
2009, the authorized capital of the Company was increased
from HK$750,000,000 to HK$1,000,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.50 each (the “Share(s)”).

During the year under review, the Company issued and allotted
22,018,048 new Shares in the capital of the Company at a price
of HK$2.572 per Share to the shareholders who elected to receive
Shares credited as fully paid in lieu of cash for the final dividend of
the Company for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

Other than the aforesaid share allotment, the Company issued and
allotted an aggregate of 2,010,000 new Shares at an exercise price
of HK$2.155 per Share upon exercises of share options by several
employees of the Company under the share option scheme of the

Company.

All those new Shares issued rank pari passu in all respect with the

then existing issued shares of the Company.

As at 31st December, 2009, 1,347,537,988 Shares were in issue.
Deetails of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27

to the consolidated financial statements on pages 132 and 133.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on page 163.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and

those who were in office during the year are:
Name of Directors
Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Madam Tung Wai Yee
Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
Mr Lee Chan Fai

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 29 to
32.

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s
Directors during the year is set out in Note 13 to the consolidated

financial statements on page 108.
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All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. Article 116 of the Articles of
Association of the Company provides that at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors of the Company for the time
being or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then
the nearest number to but not less than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The Directors to retire in every year shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last election and shall be eligible
for re-election. In this connection, Mr Tong Albert, Mr Cheung
Siu Ping, Oscar and Madam Hsu Feng will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is
subject to the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and details of those Directors
will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to be despatched
to the shareholders together with the notice of the annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have
an unexpired service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT HWRZ B RS
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2009, the interests and short positions of the RO EENEFT A= —H > AAFIEE
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying FA A B BT AT AE B 1 B (F (R K
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations WEGE) BXVEZERDRE) 2 Rkh - E
= (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures RE 78 I AH B A0 v A 7 S R G e
2 Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section BRG] 5535210 2 H 2w HA Z A6 ] i
; 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein FE RO A (R AR IR GB 2R K & 056D
g (including interests and short positions which they were taken to 344 B B 2 B 5 SR ) - B
E have under Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be wEE s T GBS TR ([ CET#
g notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the HI) 1) 2 #5708 A 2 w) B Wk 32 BT 2 HE %
IS Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange FARITN -
% (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:
=
?; (I) The Company: @ ARANH:
&
: Shares of HK$0.50 each 9 B i fE0.50%8 o Z BBy
=3
z
’; Number of Shares
: BB B H
é Personal Family Corporate Other
s Interests Interests Interests Interests
= Name of Directors ___ H % MARE  EEEE  AdEE St 25
=
Madam Hsu Feng (4) & # &+ @A) 104,100,627 (B) Nil # 239,009,209 (C) & (D) 235,040,000 (E)
78,131,536 (F)
1,300,000 (G)
Mr Tong Albert (4) TR (4) 36,915,323 (B) Nil fi& Nil # (D) 605,666,049 (H)
39 15,000,000 (1)
Mt Tong Chi Kar BTkt ) 13,216,213 (B) Nil % Nil # (D) 631,365,159 (H)
Charles (4) 13,000,000 (/)

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen HERE L Nil 4 Nil Nil & 2,000,000 (K)
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(IT)

Notes:

The Company’s associated corporations:

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited
(“China Boom”)

() A2 v Z A1 M

1) BEMEARAF
(TE3E])

Shares of US$1 each A B 1360 2 By
Number of shares of China Boom
B R EH
Personal Family ~ Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director WL H PN & KB hE 2% A )RR I b B 22
Madam Hsu Feng (L) & it (@) 716,800 Nil & 563,200 Nil &

(2) Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited

(“Tomson Entertainment”)

2) GEBREROARA
(TZFRL%E])

Shares of NTD10 each 45 B A9 & W 10oc 2 By
Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment
i 3AER S P Tie §E
Personal Family =~ Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director WA i A BE 2% RIBHEDRR 2 il BE 2R b BE 25
Madam Hsu Feng (M) w ft ™M) 1,350,000 Nil & 1,125,000 Nil &
Madam Hsu Feng is mother of Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi (A WL A% TR RS TR B

Kar Charles and they were considered to be persons acting in concert
pursuant to the SFO. As at 31st December, 2009, they held an aggregate
of 657,581,372 Shares (of which 628,281,372 Shares were issued and
29,300,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises of share options),
representing 48.80% interests in the total issued share capital of the
Company, pursuant to the SFO. If all the outstanding share options
under the share option scheme of the Company were fully exercised,
they would be interested in 47.48% of the enlarged issued share capital

of the Company.
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(B)

©

(E)

These Shares were held by the relevant Directors of the Company in (B) WERGHALAAAREEULEGREA A
their capacities as beneficial owners. Z B WA
The 239,009,209 Shares were beneficially held by the following (C)  #%%239,009,209 8 153 i R A AR AT Z F 5
substantial sharecholders of the Company: Je R i B A
Number of
Shares held
Name of companies kY Pide A By 2 B H
King China Holdings Limited i 3 L AR A F 139,256,478
E-Shares Investments Limited E-Shares Investments Limited 99,752,731
239,009,209

As Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interests of King China Holdings
Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited as at 31st December, 2009,

she was deemed to be interested in these Shares pursuant to the SFO.

REZZALE T A=+ —H BRR®
B 2o 1 e A 2E 42 A IR W) ) CE-Shares
Investments LimitedZ 2 ¥ 4 - MU S GE
I KB RB)  BOWAR BT W Ry 2
HE 4 o

The following companies, being private companies incorporated in (D) TN (H 5 AU L 2 FA N
Hong Kong and wholly-owned subsidiaries of Rivera (Holdings) SR — RN LT 2 A | )1 AR E A R
Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) (“RHL”), beneficially held an oA (THH D) B 2 B K& A /) B4 Fe &
aggregate of 162,911,243 Shares: $£162,911,243 8 B 173

Number of

Shares held
Name of companies 2l 4 % Bt ¥ AT BBy 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited EREEARAA 13,361,530
Shine Trip Limited Fi J A IR A 149,549,713

162,911,243
Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert were directors of RHL. On the TRH L L B R S A S N R R e
other hand, Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar — 7 AR IR GE IR M B R - R &
Charles were or were deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL T IR e AR R B e R S AR 2 )
pursuant to the SFO. W2 R o
Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements and deeds with Mr (B) T de 0 By 18] So i Kl 1 8 de A T

Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, to sell to cach of them
117,520,000 Shares, in an aggregate of 235,040,000 Shares, subject to
a security in favour of Madam Hsu Feng for their performance of the
duties under the aforesaid agreements and therefore Madam Hsu Feng

had a security interest in these issued Shares pursuant to the SFO.

ok S B2 4% > 11 4% 55 23 Bl 5 117,520,000
By (A 3£235,040,000 8 B4y ) » HE WS A7 28 1]
TRAR £z 50 AT 08 A5 A Al B R TE R 2 AT
T EHAE AR a5 - PRIt ARYE GE 5 R0 & i
B > BRAR R %S R 2 — TR B
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Subject to the agreements and deeds as mentioned in Note (E) above,
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were
considered to be persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO. In
this connection, Madam Hsu Feng was taken to be interested in a total
of 78,131,536 Shares held by Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles, amongst which, 28,000,000 Shares were issuable upon exercises

of share options.

Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner an option
under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled her to
subscribe for 1,300,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per
Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.

Subject to the agreements and deeds as mentioned in Note (E) above,
Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles were

considered to be persons acting in concert pursuant to the SFO.

In this connection, Mr Tong Albert was not only interested in the
117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to be
interested in a total of 488,146,049 Shares held by Madam Hsu Feng
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, amongst which, 14,300,000 Shares were

issuable upon exercises of share options.

On the other hand, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was not only interested in
the 117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu Feng, but taken to
be interested in a total of 513,845,159 Shares held by Madam Hsu Feng
and Mr Tong Albert, amongst which, 16,300,000 Shares were issuable

upon exercises of share options.

Mr Tong Albert held in his capacity as a beneficial owner options
under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled him to
subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$2.155
per Share during a period of 5 years ending on 23rd July, 2011 and
13,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per Share during
a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles held in his capacity as a beneficial owner
an option under the share option scheme of the Company which
entitled him to subscribe for 13,000,000 Shares at a subscription price
of HK$3.644 per Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th
November, 2015.
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(K)  Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen held in his capacity as a beneficial owner an
option under the share option scheme of the Company which entitled
him to subscribe for 2,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of
HK$2.155 per Share during a period of 5 years ending on 23rd July,
2011. He was considered to be interested in 0.15% of the total issued
capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2009, pursuant to the
SFO. If all the outstanding share options under the share option scheme
of the Company were fully exercised, he would be interested in 0.14% of

the enlarged issued share capital of the Company.

(L)  Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner a personal
interest in 716,800 shares (being 56%) in the capital of China Boom
while the Company held the balance of interest of 563,200 shares (being
44%) in the capital of China Boom through its wholly-owned subsidiary.
Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of more than one-
third of voting power at general meetings of the Company, hence, she
was also taken to be interested in those shares held by the Company.
In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed to be interested
in 1,280,000 shares (being 100%) in the issued share capital of China

Boom pursuant to the SFO.

(M) Madam Hsu Feng held in her capacity as a beneficial owner a personal
interest in 1,350,000 shares (being 54%) in the capital of Tomson
Entertainment while the Company held an interest in 1,125,000 shares
(being 45%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment through its wholly-
owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise
of more than one-third of voting power at general meetings of the
Company, hence, she was also taken to be interested in those shares held
by the Company. In conclusion, Madam Hsu was interested and deemed
to be interested in 2,475,000 shares (being 99%) in the issued share

capital of Tomson Entertainment pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and
their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2009, which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein (including interests or short positions
which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

(K)  HWRERAEDHERHBAAZ GBAEERL
2 W TRORE S ) T 2 SRR 5 SR A HE
REE-E—-—FtA -+ =0 LB RTHAE
20 7 A B B4 2.15 5 W8 T 2 R A R
2,000,000 8 B fy o M5 R I5 KA B i) -
W EENET A+ B AES
RAF RO EATRA Z20.15%MHE 25 o ik A
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
29th May, 2002. Subject to earlier termination by the Company
in general meeting or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and
effective till 28th May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and

effect.

Apart from the Scheme, at no time during the year nor at the
end of the year ended 31st December, 2009 was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any

other body corporate.

Major terms of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards
to selected persons for their contribution to the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”).

The participants of the Scheme include:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity; or

(ii) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity

who have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or

(iv) any sharcholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.
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As at the date of this Report, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue under options granted or to be granted under
the Scheme is 63,224,911, representing approximately 4.69% of

the Company’s existing issued share capital.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant or
grantee (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”).
If any further grant of options to a participant or grantee would
result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options granted and to be granted in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant in excess
of the Individual Limit, such further grant must be subject to
shareholders” approval in general meeting with such participant or

grantee and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised under the Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute

discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less than

the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer

of the option, which must be a business day;

(ii)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;

and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.
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Movements during the year T4 BE P W I i 2 5 1B
During the year ended 31st December, 2009, no options were MM E_ZENFE+H =T —HILFE
granted under the Scheme. The carrying rights to subscribe for TR > Sl ¥ A B e AR 4R e T A A o 2t
Shares together with details of movements in the options under the W TR 2 0 T HEE ) I T R e 2 5 )
Scheme are shown as follows: THWTF
. . =
Number of Shares subject to the options #
TR T 2 BBy =
Cancelled/ i—
Exercise Balance Granted  Exercised Lapsed Balance =4
Date of price Exercise as at during during during as at 2
Name of grantees grant per Share period 1.1.2009 the year the year theyear  31.12.2009 §~
420094 420094 e
BB VI AR BB BB 12isil s
RENAH ginm fr 1 G A 5k il fifE /M Zhik E
(HKS)
(#7)
=
&
Category 1: Directors =3
R TR =
#®
Madam Hsu Feng 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 - 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000 i
f Hat 12.11.2015 g_f
[
Mr Tong Albert 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 E
BFREE 23.7.2011 o
=
=]
13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 - 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000 o
12.11.2015 §
§
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles 13.11.2007 3.044 13.11.2007 - 13,000,000 - - - 13,000,000 =
LRE ik 12.11.2015
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
WAL 23.7.0011
Total for Directors
EFLAE 31,300,000 - - - 31,300,000 46
Category 2: Employees
HERN e R
Employees 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 - 8,060,000 - 2,010,000 (a) - 6,050,000
& & 23.7.2011
Total for Employees
ERZ4H 8,060,000 - 2,010,000 - 6,050,000
Total for all categories
LEEVEY 39,360,000 - 2,010,000 - 37,350,000
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Notes:

(a)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the

dates on which the options were exercised was HK$2.2419.

Save as disclosed above, no other options under the Scheme were
outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year ended
31st December, 2009 nor were granted, exercised, cancelled or

lapsed at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, is a director and substantial shareholder of RHL
while Mr Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive
Director of the Company, is a director and is deemed to be a
substantial shareholder of RHL pursuant to the SFO. In addition,
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, executive Director of the Company, is
also deemed to be a substantial shareholder of RHL pursuant to
the SFO.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment
exclusively in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai
through its subsidiaries and associated company, while property
development and investment in Shanghai, in particular Pudong,
is one of the principal businesses of the Group, so the business
of RHL in the property sector (the “Excluded Business”) may

potentially compete with the Group’s business.

In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business
which may compete or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than that business
where the Directors have been appointed/were appointed as
directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the

Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed
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company in Hong Kong and the Excluded Business is managed
by its independent management and administration. Besides, the
Board is independent of the board of directors of RHL and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company will assist
in monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at an

arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,

2009.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-
effective staff management and incentive structure. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to
market terms, individual responsibilities, performance and
qualifications. The emoluments of the executive Directors of the
Company are decided by the remuneration committee of the Board
or the full Board (as the case may be) and the fee of the Directors
is fixed by the Board under the authorization of the shareholders
of the Company. In addition, the Company has adopted a share
option scheme pursuant to which the directors and employees of
the Group are eligible for being granted options to subscribe for

Shares as a long-term incentive.
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PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong
Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme effective from
December 2000 and is funded by contributions from employer
and employees according to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance.
Should there be the employer’s voluntary contributions to the
scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to
reduce the amount of future voluntary contributions payable by

the employer.

On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the Mainland
China are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
government. The employers and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under rules of

the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$4,720,000 (2008:
HK$3,946,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2009, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly
or indirectly, in 5% or more of the total issued share capital
and underlying shares of the Company and those interests were

required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO:
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Name of substantial shareholders

ER )L s

Number of Shares held
(proportion to the total issued

share capital of the Company)

i K5 A1 I 4y ¥ H

(AR A ZBCETIRAZTE )

Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”) J1[ i 8 B A BR A =] ([ ]) (a)

King

China Holdings Limited $f %2 £ [# A [ 22 7] (b)

E-Shares Investments Limited (b)

Notes:

()

(b)

Amongst those Shares disclosed, 149,549,713 Shares were beneficially
held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Superwell Development Limited in which RHL held the entire interest.
Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell Development Limited and
RHL were interested or were taken to be interested in those Shares

pursuant to the SFO.

Details of the interest taken to be held by RHL under the SFO are set
out in Note (D) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and

Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited were
the beneficial owners of those Shares respectively. They were beneficially
and wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng in her capacity as a beneficial
owner. By virtue of the SFO, their interests in the Shares therefore
constituted part of the total interests of Madam Hsu Feng, Mr Tong
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles in the capital of the Company as
disclosed in the above paragraph headed “Directors’ Interests and Short

Positions in Securities” in this Report.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not

aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company)

who

had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in

the total issued share capital and the underlying shares of the

Company and those interests or short positions were required to be

recorded in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31st December, 2009.

162,911,243 (12.09%)
139,256,478 (10.33%)
99,752,731 (7.40%)

T 5% S R #R 2 Oy > 149,549,713 B B 07 iH
Fity JE AT BR 28 W) B £ R AT o i AT PR F) 2
BEE R A B A B 2 A K B A | I R
HigE 2 B - NG ARYE GBS M &
Ty - B AT BRA ]~ e B R R A BR A A 2
U] $5E A 58RI o W A S I 2 W o

A B NAR B GE J5 B B ) v LA By
A0 HE 2 1R AR 5 R AR R A S P T A AR
f [T 2 W8 R M i oo | — B Z B 3R (D)
e

i 2 4 [ 45 BR /A W X E-Shares Investments
Limiteddr Hll B 5% % M 2 & HEH A i
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of
this Report, the Company maintains a sufficient public float as

prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st December, 2009 have been audited by Messrs Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu who were the Auditor of the Company for the

past three financial years.

They will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual
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general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director
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Hong Kong, 13th April, 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Deloitte.
= 2]

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 154, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31st December, 2009, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are

reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume

responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December, 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 13th April, 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HMEEZNFE+_HA=1+—HILFEE

2009 2008
e 25/ S YA
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$000
Bt 7 T#x T T
Gross proceeds from operations K8 I 25 B AR 8& 9 703,475 2,386,932
Revenue A 8 661,113 2,315,982 "
Cost of sales B B A (181,861) (870,253) 3
(2
Gross profit T 479,252 1,445,729 =
Y VA — = N4 ‘5
Net gain (loss) in investments held ERERE (kEHE) FHE E‘
for trading 23,722 (32,599) E
Other income oA g A 10 24,499 67,278 =
Other gains and losses oAb i 25 % s 18 11 5,406 39,504 i
Selling expenses HE 2 (121,817) (262,953) -
Administrative expenses T 2 (147,740) (124,130) =
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A] Ak 1R W s 1R %
investments 24 - (32,215) E
Net gain on disposal/fair value REYELE AT EEE) g
changes of investment properties A 2 A AR 2,950,178 17,535 B
Finance costs il 5 2 12 (21,700) (22,242) 3
g
=
3,191,800 1,095,907 &
Share of results of associates JE AL B 2 N /) 2 24 (2,017) (1,547) S
Share of results of jointly controlled JEALE G B R ER 3
entities 1,063 11,008 g
=
Profit before taxation ¥ A 11T Vs A1) 13 3,190,846 1,105,368
Taxation ol JH 14 (1,798,059) (484,369)
Profit for the year A Vi | 1,392,787 620,999 4
Profit for the year attributable to: JRE A 4 B i A 40T
Owners of the Company A F R AR A A 1,387,406 451,986
Minority interests D BB R RE 5,381 169,013
1,392,787 620,999
Earnings per share (HK cents) B e A (AL 16
— Basic — B 103.96 34.12
— Diluted — 1% 103.79 34.10
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A% 7 4 T W A %

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

2009 2008
“RFUEFE —FEINE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T# 7 T T
Profit for the year A 3 Vi A 1,392,787 620,999
Other comprehensive (expenses) income Jefib 2 (BHS2) Wtk
Exchange differences arising from o B8 Iy A 2 ME SR 22 B
translation of:
— jointly controlled entities — & 247 11,250
— other foreign operation — HoAth 1 51 355 11,279 436,769
Gain (loss) on changes in fair value of AT R N T )
available-for-sale investments EAEZ W (EHR) 34,772 (53,947)
Share of other comprehensive income of AL T /88 > ) 2 HC At 4 T U AR
associates 73 1,749
Reclassification adjustments: A
— Impairment loss on available-for-sale — Al RE 2 W E R
investments - 32,215
— Release from reserve on acquisition — N EGFEYERER
upon sale of properties held for sale W i ft A 1,681 841
— Release of exchange differences upon: — [ R O, 2
— dissolution of a subsidiary — i Hl— B B )& 2 ) (6,084) =
— dissolution of a jointly controlled — R — e B R
entity (5,563) -
— disposal of an associate — i — H B A A 735 =
Other comprehensive income for the year AP 3 At 4 THT U £ 37,140 428,877
Total comprehensive income for the year AP JBE 2 i WBC 2k 48 1,429,927 1,049,876
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  FEfihi 4 TH] Ui % AR AH 40T -
Owners of the Company /NGRS N 1,424,017 870,581
Minority interests D BB R 4 5,910 179,295
1,429,927 1,049,876




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

5 B W 5ROt 2%

At 31st December, 2009 R _EZIFE+_H=1+—H

2009 2008
ZRBIAE TERE )\
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$000
Mt 7t T4 T T
Non-Current Assets I o % e
Fixed assets EE E
— Investment properties — B &Y ¥ 17 5,544,960 6,112,800
— Property, plant and equipment L/ E AN & i 18 380,164 386,121
Lease premium for land 4+ AH & 2 19 249,420 82,080
Goodwill [k 21 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets A S Bl TH A 30 2,090 873
Interests in associates SN F 2 HE 25 22 32,086 34,897
Interests in jointly controlled entities HNEBEMEZ LR 23 159,930 199,414
Available-for-sale investments ] fit i R 24 132,632 97,860
6,534,570 6,947,333
Current Assets b s g3
Lease premium for land + b FH & 19 6,426 6,411
Properties under development EREPY E 20 2,441,348 1,128,726
Properties held for sale FrEWE 3,281,518 1,052,353
Trade and other receivables and JE W B 5 B 2k~ HAth R i
prepayments R K M T8 A 3] E 26(a) 283,370 254,377
Investments held for trading FERE 25 80,387 24,606
Inventories HE 26(b) 23,001 23,372
Prepaid income tax FE A B 45 #i 142,868 28,250
Cash and bank balances B4 SR AT 45 iR 26(d) 2,728,657 1,513,254
8,987,575 4,031,349
Current Liabilities i B £ 4%
Trade and other payables and accruals JRE AT 52 5 R~ HC A R A
IR K iR E 26(c) 636,560 604,101
Receipts in advance A Wk TEH 1,590,247 40,951
Tax payables A5} i JE 1,335,746 763,606
Current portion of long-term bank 1= B SR AT 15 s 2 B I 0
borrowings 29 11,360 192,809
3,573,913 1,601,467
Net Current Assets R B A 5,413,662 2,429,882
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities H8OF 3 DU B £ 4 11,948,232 9,377,215
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31st December, 2009 R _EZIFE+_H=1+—H

2009 2008
“EF(E  —ELTNE
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$000
s T#x T T
Capital and Reserves A B ki i
5
g Share capital Ji A 27 673,769 661,755
i Reserves it At 8,592,023 7,191,851
s
i Equity attributable to owners of AN ) HE 4 R N REAG HE £
g e Carmppany 9,265,792 7,853,606
g‘ﬁ Minority interests D BB R 45 344,539 339,306
53¢
. Total Equity H8BE 235 9,610,331 8,192,912
f
E; Non-Current Liabilities B T IRER
: Long-term bank borrowings = B ER AT 15 3K 29 319,209 192,809
: Deferred tax liabilities I 4 49 £ 15 30 2,018,692 991,494
=
"g 2,337,901 1,184,303
S
g 11,948,232 9,377,215
&
&
g The consolidated financial statements were approved and BEAMBHRRCR _F-FENA +=H
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 13th April, 2010. £l R At I PR T o
57
Hsu Feng Tong Albert
i U]
Chairman Vice-Chairman
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

B 4 M 2t 5 ) o

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

Notes:

(c)

(d)

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference between
the aggregate amount of the then share capital and share premium
account of Tomson Investment Limited, the former holding company
of the Group, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued

pursuant to a scheme of arrangement in 1989.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares. The

amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares repurchased.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from retained
earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the relevant
government authorities. This reserve is distributable only for the future

development or expansion of that company where concession is granted.

The statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”) is an appropriation from retained
earnings by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) subsidiaries of
the Group. In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10% of their profit
after tax to the SSR until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase capital

subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company Law of the PRC.

Reserve on acquisition arose on acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiary, being the excess of the fair value over the carrying value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities attributable
to the additional interests of the subsidiary acquired on the date of
acquisition. When the identifiable assets are revalued or disposed of,
the relevant amount of the reserve on acquisition is released to the

consolidated income statement.

Of the retained earnings of HK$5,165,733,000 (2008:
HK$3,851,120,000), Nil (2008: retained profits HK$6,046,000) are
attributable to jointly controlled entities and accumulated losses of
HK$8,949,000 (2008: HK$17,803,000) are attributable to associates.

(c)

(d)

€9)

AR ) 22 R ol £ s A AR T S i 2 2 T 4 )
Py BB AT BRAS R > 8 I BEAS T I i 15 M
AU BRAS % R — JUNJUAE AR 5 — JE T sk et
W BEAT IRy 2 T 2 2250

S AR IR [ ol A D [ IR A o i < L T ()
) J M3 5% T L <2 B

A 3 % JR At A 7 P AT TR BT B N A T B S 4R
LTI 5 DR B 3 ) o AR AR 2 2 R AT
B EEZ AFMERRRRERE A -

5 R B ol A R A AR TR o R L AN
(T eF 1) B g 2 ) 4 R B i M) 412 488 Y I o
RyE (hEEANRIEBE A FE) - ALK H
10 S 2 il ZE0 0 T R A i 1L 9 1096 2 %
FLER AR > 2 % Tl < R B % B A )
0 AR 95096 o 125 50 L B fk A T g > DA
B 185 A i o 2R R b e N IR LA Y
A TR P g T R o

I UN N PAa AL E el S K
JEE AR T TP AL R T T WS 1 S 2 R
28 A 2 RIS 2 AT ) U B R
£ 08 2 MR T L © 6 AT i ) A R R L o
B R R 0 ST ot < AR A B R R o o

RS %5 15,165,733,0008 00 (& /\4F

3,851,120,000% 7T ) H1 > 3f 45 JE 1 & 45 > 2
4 88 %6 R (. FE ULE £ 6,046,00048 70) -

1M18,949,000%5 ¢ ( —ZF & J\4F : 17,803,000
TG ) Jr A A A W A AR S A
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

i Bl R R

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 HMEEZNFE+_HA=1+—HILFEE

2009 2008
ZERJE FTNFE
HKS$’°000 HKS$’000
T#x T T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEG
Profit before taxation % A, AT ¥4 1) 3,190,846 1,105,368
Adjustments for: DL
Share of results of associates JRE A B 7 N F] 2 AR 2,017 1,547
Share of results of jointly controlled entities JEAL A A e 2E4E (1,063) (11,008)
Release from reserve on acquisition upon H 6 155 B W 2 IR 1 o5 ok £
sales of properties held for sale 1,681 841
Gain on disposal of an associate HE — I A\ 2 I 4 (3,185) -
Gain on dissolution of i — M A B i
a jointly controlled entity (2,735) -
Interest on bank loans SRAT B AR 21,700 22,242
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary gt ol — [H] Y ) 2 W) 2 Wi 4 (6,084) -
Depreciation of property, E R N & L R
plant and equipment 25,133 24,971
Amortisation of lease premium for land + Hb FH B 2 4 G 6,425 6,413
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At R 2 W E R 1R
investments - 32,215
Impairment loss on broadcasting right JEE 5 HEE 3 (L s 1R = 4,612
Bad debts written off and allowance S IR BB e R SRR A ()
(written back) for bad and doubtful debts 6,145 (5,724)
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, Y3 R SRR B
plant and equipment and lease premium HEEHZEE (i)
on land, net of written off FAE > B ANBR IS &5 828 (23,404)
Net gain on disposal/fair value changes of B"EWELE ANTHEHEH
investment properties B A 22 IR B VR AR (2,950,178) (17,535)
Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value changes FEREAN T EEBELEZ
of investments held for trading B (s ) s (19,036) 43,490
Interest income FLE A (16,808) (25,219)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments  AJ ft i & % & 2 Ik Bk A (2,557) (36,601)
Operating cash inflows before movements in WS S E AT 2 RS BT A
working capital 253,129 1,122,208
Decrease in properties held for sale FFEWER D 24,347 805,588
Increase in trade and other receivables and JRE i B8 R~ L A R i R K
prepayments TE AT 3T 3G (34,785) (8,464)
(Increase) decrease in investments held RPERE () W
for trading (36,745) 10,317
Decrease (increase) in inventories & (3m) 407 (3,212)
Increase (decrease) in trade and JREAT 2 T B ik~ At R AT B R I
other payables and accruals FE A 2 A B () 31,553 (160,762)
Increase (decrease) in receipts in advance TE SR TE B 0 (W) 1,549,232 (882,379)
Addition in properties under development B W) ZE 8 (1,311,839) (966,168)
Cash from (used in) operations MEEBEL (TR 284 475,299 (82,872)
Taxes paid e A B K (315,374) (131,568)
Interests paid E A FLE (25,540) (26,941)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) BEEHEL (PN Z
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Bl &% 134,385 (241,381)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HEBsREER

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BE

FENFTA=+—HILEE

2009 2008
ZREBRE ERTNE
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T# T T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES B
Interest received 2l S 16,934 25,196
Return on investment in/dividend HEMERE ME E R
from a jointly controlled entity 9,831 3,294
Dividends from available-for-sale investments ] fi ) 8 8 & 2 it Bl A 2,557 36,601
Proceeds on disposal of an associate BB — [ B A B 22 BT 19 R IE 3,931 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and B W3 R B R e
equipment and lease premium on land A B B 5 E 2,834 53,772
Proceeds on dissolution of a jointly fif T — FﬁA’M’A%ZFﬁﬁ‘/M}(
controlled entity 27,618 =
Purchase of property, plant and equipment M B ¥ 3 - Wk 5 K % i (17,021) (14,028)
Purchase of lease premium for land A T AL S 2 (173,994) -
Addition in investment properties HERLEYE (42,198) (1,291)
Proceeds on disposal of R E Y 3 2 T 1S R
investment properties 1,316,014 -
Repayment from jointly controlled entities FEMEZEKR - 2,440
Repayment from an associate —[H AT 2B 873 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING B W A 2 BT A
ACTIVITIES 1,147,379 105,984
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 7 ¥ 35 )
Cash dividend paid SR DB s (16,163) (72,760)
Dividend paid to minority interests 2T HUk R 2 BB (677) -
Repayment of bank borrowings 8 7% R 17 1 3k (443,031) (11,342)
New bank loans raised B EERAT B K 387,368 -
Repurchase of shares [ i 5z Ay = (9,101)
Payment for reduction of registered share A HI 980 R A AR o B 2
capital to a minority shareholder of D BB AT R
a subsidiary = (6,625)
Proceeds from exercising of share options A7 {6l 195 B HE 2 BT 45 3 H 4,332 22,582
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING Y 3% B BT ) 2 B4 ¥
ACTIVITIES (68,171) (77,246)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 314 X% Bl & % i % H ¥ Jm
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (W 4) 1,213,593 (212,643)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—H—HZBER
AT 1ST JANUARY Be&%MEH 1,513,254 1,647,321
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE b W S YR 5 2 Y
RATE CHANGES 1,810 78,576
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT-A=Z1+—HZBE& R
AT 31ST DECEMBER, BRe&SMHEHA
represented by cash and bank balances RV 4 B $RAT &5 B 2,728,657 1,513,254
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A5 W 05 W B ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

1. GENERAL 1.

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year were property development and
investment, hospitality and leisure activities, manufacturing

of PVC pipes, securities trading and investment holding.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF 28
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and

by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA:

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial Instruments
(Amendments) and Obligations Arising on

Liquidation

— B ER

AL F) oy — A B 2 By Rk AL 2
R BR o w] > HBAR A 7 U I A 5
S B ABRAF ([BEZBr]) BT o A%
R 2w A R o S M R 2
Hk B A 4 R 2 oy B BB B R

A A SO LK B A m (A SR 1 ) it
AN EEIEH W) ST R R
B OE MO R BB E - W
R BCEER

A g A B AR TG 1 IR R
KRz S R R AR
il o BEAb > %5 WA H R AR A B 23S B
GEZE AN (T CEmALAD 1)
Lo (s A w1 P BE 2 8 3%
FRHIH-

HE T B sl (At it
5 4 I

AR AEEC R LT A
& w2 G A 2T R AR
BRI A K B (17T R AR Bk
C s P 5 i L) 1)

(g stiEd) 1
(ZZZLEREY)
(FiEastE) #2385  fBERA
(ZZZLEREY)

(FiEastEd) $2%k THESMTARS
B (B4 BRELZRE

Bz 25



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B V5 8 % B ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. WEHBT B (il
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL B ) )
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
HKEFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a (R B St T 1) HHEAR 5ES
(Amendments) Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled FER ERBELTA LR
Entity or Associate (FiEasEd) B A ®
a7k (BT &) g
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and (B it S S e ) 57 B O 1 T B &
Cancellations F29% (BATA) §
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about CF T B T A 5 X ) HHEMLEHGEL 2
Financial Instruments F79 (BT A) [§i3 §~
HKEFRS 8 Operating Segments Rt B 5 S 1) BEM a_:
Exy: E
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives i (HRMHEREYN  BAKRETR -
HKAS 39 (Amendments) nREAE) -
— i BAI R g
(FEGFHEA) =
5308 (3T7) s
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes it (I o 5 it % F R %:é
REZES) -
R £
HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of i (o0 e B R 5 B 'i
Real Estate wRZAE) §
-RERIH p
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a i (0 e B R WNEBRETHL g
Foreign Operation wBZAE) i -
- BH165
HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers Al (MR B R e KFEE®Y
wBZAE)
— i B 188
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in CF W 0 T A 2 Y 1) ZRENERM 2 64
2008, except for the amendment (BETA) (B B s 1
to HKFRS 5 that is effective for Iy Z W =
annual periods beginning on or FENELA-H
after Ist July, 2009 FHE IR 5
BB (i
MR 5
545 L AT AR S
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued (B i MR A 1) “EF NN
in 2009 in relation to the (BT %) (B e s ot 1
amendment to paragraph 80 of ) 2o B R
HKAS 39 (B & aHEAD
H39HF80B 2 I

HES
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. BERDBGGT Rk (s
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REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced a number of
terminology changes, including revised titles for the
consolidated financial statements, and changes in the format
and contents of the consolidated financial statements.
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has not resulted in
a redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see
Note 9). However, it resulted the changes in the basis of

measurement of segment revenue.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The Group has not provided comparative information for
the expanded disclosures in accordance with the transitional

provision set out in the amendments.

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the

Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKERSs 2008!

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009*

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures®

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements!

Bt M J) o)

(EEGHELD) B3 (ZFFT L4
BB SIAZHG R 28 (LI ET
BR A BB R AR RE > DA R AR S B S
WERZEARANTZEH) - (Fislt
B MR ) ST M — TE R E A -
Sl AN B B EOA G J 2 R o SR E R
e (JEMFAE9) < SRT > FE s o BT
WA Z FH R

RSB 4R 55782 9T
K DA 71 2 T BT B
OV A2 R - AR A T A
P 2 38 P B S A 9 S
kB 2 MR

PRAHT T I 5E A8 Bl <7 o B B 4 e
) S5 A 2 1 A 00 s 1 U ) 2
B T B R Al R B

A B2 1) i) R 4 5L BR A LA 2 A A L 1
KA Z H T KRB B s 5 ik
D)

(B i M B B D) (i I i

(BaT%) Ay HsH 2 BT
KAEBZEEN
Mz (kM
BREEN) 2%
A

(B i M B B D) “EFNERMZ

(BaT%) (B i Mot
) 2 g

(FiEgsHEf) %24 BT R

(&E%)

(FHEstell) F7s SR RBIHHERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

RERIraT B sl (A vl M
B ) )

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues* (B asHEd) %329 {2 7 B
(B4
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items' (BB EaHEND %395 AERHEMIER 3
(fETA) ol
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for First-time (BFBMTRERAD F198 FRERALZE &
Adopters’ (Bi%) B g
HKEFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Rt B 0 5 e L) HRERALE (B g
Comparative HKFRS 7 F19E (BT A) i ot A S L) k)
Disclosures for First-time FTHEHFE L LR E
Adopters’ BHZER®BE E
HKEFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based (it SR e 1) EENURLEE ] —
Payment Transactions® 5% (BATA) i STp TR i
HKEFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations! e W 0 A 25 Y ) B A §
39 (BBY) j‘é
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’ (R B S T 1) SHITHE &
otk -
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding i (BB IEREN  REESHENFN 2
(Amendment) Requirement® RRERE) RS é
BB (BITA) =
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to it ([P B R e HEBEEEMRT we
Owners! wRZE®) 2N §
— 178k 5
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities i (BRI ERER DU TRIERMH
with Equity Instruments’ RRZAE) A
— 195

L ORCEFAELA - ASAEMGZ
4 B 5 66

REFFNELA AR =% %5

S DA O 2 02

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009 ?

and 1st January, 2010, as appropriate

(FZ 1WA )

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, ’ o —FE—H - HEHRMRZ
2010 A T 1) A=

d Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist February, 4 o —FAETH - HERRZ
2010 4 B2 39 ] 2R 5

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 Z MR —RFELH —HSRHEER G2
AF B ] A 2%

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1lst January, ¢ o —— - - HEHRMRZ
2011 A T 1) A=

7 RoFE—=F—H—HRKE&KMHRZ
2013 AT i 1 1) 2R AL

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W05 0 0 Wi ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 #% —%

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
Group’s accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after lst January, 2010. HKAS 27
(Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes in

the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from 1st January,
2013, with earlier application permitted. The standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be measured at either amortised cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial

assets.

In addition, as part of Improvements to HKFRSs issued in
2009, HKAS 17 Leases has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasechold land. The amendments will
be effective from Ist January, 2010, with earlier application
permitted. Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees
were required to classify leaschold land as operating leases
and presented as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The amendments have
removed such a requirement. Instead, the amendments
require the classification of leasehold land to be based on the
general principles set out in HKAS 17, that are based on the
extent to which risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of a leased asset lie with the lessor or the lessee. The
application of the amendments to HKAS 17 might affect
the classification and measurement of the Group’s leasehold

land.

FAEF A=t —HIEEE

3.

REJHB) B s (s
B M H) )
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JE )t o B 5 o o B ) ) S93 9 (€
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CHF s A 5 i MR R ) S59%E [l T
HIGIAT A& EE DB LG &
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(I g HT Al 395 [ &M TH
il 8 K w ) R A T A R L
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have

no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

3.

RERIraT B sl (A vl M
B ) )

7 ) TR U ) A R AT R AR A
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N B 2 g BOR P ARG B
2K T 4 IR URE S A RO MR ik A R M
BB 3 B T M T RN T E R
RSN

B RS R BLAE A R e AR 4 m
PEHIETRE LA A R 2 Bk -
WARNAAMEES —XER LR ZH
B s UK > DL RE A H S B Hh A
Al a5 o R 2 A 12 o o

I A TR B B o B 2 I R 2 AR
FT A S A R R R e R AR AE
Mk (A ) 5 A SRS A -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, the
excess/shortfall of the consideration paid over/below the fair
values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to
the additional interests in a subsidiary acquired is recognised
as goodwill or discount on acquisition. Excess of fair values
over the carrying amounts of the underlying assets and
liabilities attributable to the additional interests is debited
to reserve on acquisition. On subsequent disposal of a
subsidiary or revaluation or disposal of the underlying assets
of that subsidiary, the attributable reserve on acquisition is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss

on disposal or gain or loss on revaluation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes in
equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable
to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to

cover the losses.
Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

recognised.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date is
before Ist January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at

the date of acquisition.

From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

4.

FEFFEBOR (#)

FEHAOF )

W S E A Y R D R B WD 1%
WA GRS B 6 B R 2R B
R HY) A 4R B R ORI A B
IR MR A M AR PR 2N 1 3 (L o W0 E AR
A 42 [ A OO B AT R B - A
fi I AR AR 2 1 4 ML A 2 B O
B & OF AR Y SRR ST R A
& M R T o

T A S S ) 2 S P TR £ A ) 9% D
BB R TR EE - B
REMENFFEW L plEHR -

[ 5y

PRI WS 5 — B B ) 9 R I SRS AR
R (S ek A = F T
R — HHT) > T34 W A A Wi
H 7 A 4 A A B B A R 2
Al P % B RY ASFE R A o

HoZZhFE—H-HRHG A%EH
71 B AR BAS AT AT 2 R BUE R R A
HE o

WA S S s O E AR R B AL BB AR A
BABS AR DL R 0 B 2 51

¥
&
2
&
(2
=)
=
(|
g
=]
oy
U
=
=
-]
=]
s
<

=
&
=
o
&
HH
I8
ba-]
3
E
—
(="
=
2
&
(=]
e
g
g

70




5
g
=]
=]
2
(=]
=
o~
&
g
g
S
o
B
=
2
=
»
3y

4y 600C 110doy renuuy |

=
i

71

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W05 0 0 Wi ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is
an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on

disposal.
Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds

its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payment on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. When a
group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

in the relevant associate.
Interests in jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest
in that jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of that jointly controlled entity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in jointly controlled entities
(Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. When a
group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in the consolidated income

statement.
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised and derecognised on a trade date

basis.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss represent investments held for trading. The Group
classified such financial assets as held for trading investments
as they has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near future.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement includes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial assets.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
cash and bank balances, amounts due from associates and
jointly controlled entities) are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

For trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
that Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the borrower being probable to enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the loans and
receivables are impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original

effective interest rate.

The carrying amounts of the loans and reccivables are
reduced by the impairment loss directly with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When trade and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the

consolidated income statement.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the loans and receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have

been had the impairment not been recognised.
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
cither designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, held-for-maturity investments

and loans and receivables.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment reserve, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in investment

reserve is reclassified to the consolidated income statement.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not reverse in the consolidated income statement in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in investment reserve.
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POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting

period.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in

subsequent periods.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all

of its liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par
value and in retained earnings for total amount paid in
excess of par value. The same amount recognised in share
capital will be transferred from retained earnings to capital
redemption reserves. No gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated income statement on the purchase, sale, issue or

cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is

recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Impairment losses other than goodwill and
financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in the consolidated income

statement for the period in which they arise.

Transfer from investment properties to properties held for
sale will be made when there is a change of use, evidenced
by commencement of development with a view to sale. The
fair value of the related property will be transferred as the
cost of the properties held for sale, any difference between
the carrying value and the fair value of the related property
at the date of transfer is recognised in consolidated income

statement.

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and
equipment will be made when there is a change in use as
evidenced by commencement of owner occupation. The fair
value of that item will be transferred as the cost of property,
plant and equipment subject to appropriate depreciation.
For property interest held under operating lease previously
classified as an investment property and accounted for as if
it were a finance lease under the fair value model, the Group
shall continue to account for the lease as a finance lease,
even if subsequent event changes the nature of the property

interest so that it is no longer classified as investment

property.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the

item is derecognised.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction work-in-progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is
completed and the asset is available for use, the related cost
is transferred to appropriate category of property, plant and

equipment and depreciated in accordance with the following

policy.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets
other than construction work-in-progress less their estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives by equal

annual instalments at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and
buildings

2% to 4% or over the term
of the relevant lease

4% to 13%

18% to 40%

Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and
equipment and

motor vehicles
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is

derecognised.

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost/deemed cost and
estimated net realisable value. Properties under development
which are intended for sale in the ordinary course of business

upon completion are classified as current assets.

Properties transferred from investment properties to
properties held for sale are stated at deemed cost on date of

transfer.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is

deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated

income statement in the year in which they are incurred.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discount.

When properties are developed for sale, income is recognised
only when the respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the buyers. Payments received from purchasers
prior to this stage are recorded as receipts in advance under

current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are

delivered and title has passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Revenue from sales of investments held for trading
is recognised when the sales contract has become

unconditional.

Property management fee income is recognised on an
appropriate basis over the relevant period in which the

services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FEGFHBOR )

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in the consolidated income statement for the
period except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and
their income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (foreign
currencies translation reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in the consolidated income statement in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also

recognised in other comprehensive income.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognized as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve. If a director or an employee
chooses to exercise options, the related share option reserve
is transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the related share option reserve is transferred

directly to retained earnings.

4.

FEFFEBOR 2

B (4)

0 A T JEU 2 R TR A o R
EATARES > M T DU BRI - 2 0
L 00 R SR i ) T 3 2 0 A £ A
B TE & 7 A] T 1k

R S T TEU R e B AR e TR R A A
T 1 75 B A I [ 2 R
(D& IR EAEMEEE LB
R (RBIE) By 20 515 - IR 1
T TE T T 55 R T 2R v e o e A
S 2 B A 4 T R i AT BR SRR A 2
JHHA R > BT > 2 S Bl T IS A
LAt 4 T Wi 2 P R ©

e

17 85 742 WA (L ] 58 B V1 7 4 o
2 B A - A T LT
e

JBHES A 22 )

fild 7 Je HE 52 o4 B IR  J - RN 2%
S P MR A2 S S IS 1 2 (T 7
SE AT MBS 2 o B 2 WO R 2
BH S 3lf 7 3 15 HE fof o A b AR R 3
T o e 3 2 B4R B SRR {0 PO > I
R o R St 4 2 T3 36 M < M0
S FBCHEE 7S i ) 0 488 o 5 Wi B e i
TS A AT {6 - S0 A 3] P A EE A 5
He A8 2 AR B Y A o

¥
&
2
&
(2
=)
=)
[\
g
=]
oy
U
=
=
-]
=]
(-]
<

g
&
=
<
E
&
HH
8
ba=]
3
E
—
(=9
=
9
&
(=]
s
=
=

86




5
g
=]
=]
2
=]
=
o~
&
g
g
S
o
B
=
2
=
»
Y

4y 600C 110doy enuuy |

&
i

87

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W05 3 o M ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense

over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted for as
operating leases and amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair value

model.
Retirement benefit cost
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes

are charged as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the date
of reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
(Note 21).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 29 and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued

share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing

debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a)

b)

Categories of financial instruments

e

ik TR

a)

BT H 2B

2009 2008
“RRAE  —TTNEF
HKS$°000 HK$ 000
T#7x T T
Financial assets L5 8 g7
Fair value through profit or loss BN EF AR Z
investments held for trading HERE 80,387 24,606
Loans and receivables (including B K B E AR A (4 B4
cash and cash equivalents) HESEER) 2,780,218 1,616,750
Available-for-sale investments ATk 132,632 97,860
Financial liabilities W0 45 £ 4
Amortised cost 1 5 A 899,268 958,076

Financial risks management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from associates and jointly controlled entities, cash
and bank balances, trade and other payables and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to financial

risks or the manner in which it manages and measures

the risk.

b)

SV 5 ML B 4 BIL H B B BUR

AEE 2 FEE M T HGH M
R 7 S HL A JRE WA SR K~ BB A
B B A 3 R Bl RORAT &
Bk - HE AT B 5 MR A S H At B AT R
KL R RAT M K o 5% el TR
Z EAE R A B B R A B ER o T
SCH 5% 5 < i B B 2 R R
Lo o 368 A % 55 JEL B 2 B
L A PR % B P 2 4 A R DL
TR 16 B I A 00 b BR B0 988 1) 4
Jits o A< 42 1 ThO e 2 <= Al gk G
BB R R g 2 i I B K
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued) 7. ST H &)

b) Financial risks management objectives b) %5 ML B 4 B H B B R

and policies (Continued) (45

Market risks i 55 B

(i) Currency risk G Bk g
&
Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are A T B 4 S SRAT A B §
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”) T3 LA T (G AN %) i Ik 45 (‘g
which is a foreign currency other than functional EEER MR &N (I ;‘?
currency (i.e. HKD) of the relevant group entities Je) SIMHE (SZ M iE26(d) ) » E‘
(see Note 26(d)). No analysis is presented on FH A 5 G B 35 T 8 > 0 &
HKD against USD as HKD is pegged to USD I 2 5 ¥k o SR SR T 2 4> -
and management of the Company believes the Mro HA 2 w48 B @ AR A
foreign exchange exposure is insignificant. The 4 5 R S ME Ja By o A< 4R L H
Group currently does not have a foreign currency 7 If7 406 B R A s 3 B o
hedging policy. However, management monitors SR » & P T & B 42 S BEE T
foreign exchange exposure and will consider Bt o 1 IR A 5 B IR 5
hedging significant foreign currency exposure T T TET 3 Y R A LB o

should the need arises.

Tomson Group Limited % R4 HA R A A

(ii) Interest rate risk G) T B

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate % 45 9] (R v B A SR AT AR K
risk in relation to bank deposits in the PRC Foif BARAT R 3K (BL5Ff K
and variable-rate bank borrowings (see Note wEIE SR RE29) T ZH K 2 B
29 for details of these borrowings). It is the S i ) R JE By o AS 4E B 2 1B
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at variable- R S AR PR B AE B AR 2
rate of interest so as to minimise the fair value B ) % R B o A 4K 1E) B i 90
interest rate risk. The Group currently does not f7 4 ) 22 3B e R o SR
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, T JE O 5 R B - A
management monitors interest rate exposure and A T BN € 7 I A T
will consider hedging significant interest rate ) 1) 25 Ja B o

exposure should the need arises.

The Group was also exposed to fair value interest ARAEE IR R B E\E
rate risk in relation to fixed rate bank borrowings +ZA=+—HZE 88T
as at 31st December, 2008. ER MY G e = =W Y

Ff,u:o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued) 7. ST H &)

b) Financial risks management objectives b) %5 ML B 4 B H B B R

and policies (Continued) (45
Market risks (Continued) Wi B ()
g
2 (ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) G) FIFEFE (4F)
o
_g The Group’s exposures to interest rates risk on A £ 18 THT 3 09 BB B R A 3R
g-' financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity JEL g 2 w1 A AR B R 2 3L
g risk management section of this note. The ) 4 R B AR A o A4
& Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly B 2 B4 v ) e R AR
g concentrated on the fluctuation of the market e T 5 A7 R R R ) S AR
E deposit rate and the PRC official lending rate B BN R WA SR R P B R
?; arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings. B HOR| 2R 0E B)) 2 R B o
al
: Sensitivity analysis Y
s
f_a The sensitivity analyses below have been DL B S0 R 23 A T AR 4 8
'§ determined based on the exposure to interest A7 4 % B B BRAT (i 3 2
é rates for bank balances and variable-rate bank AR i /7 FHE HE T o 5 © HLIH
= borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the I3 HT HE TR R R 2 45 B T
% balance at the end of reporting period. 30 and A B o 73 130 K 50K B B 1
g 50 basis point increase or decrease are used T D £ 1) N AR
respectively when reporting interest rate risk BN B et B Bt A B A1)
internally to key management personnel and AT W] R & BR AL T ISR
represents management's assessment of the i
reasonably possible change in interest rates.
91 For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity WU L S AT I -l R AR
rate is decreased to 30 basis points on bank A HE AR AR AR K 26 > AR AR
deposits rate in the current year as a result of the JESRAT A7 K 2 ] S R B
low level of deposit rate maintained during the 1% 253058 525 o i A 88 4~
year. The Group’s post-tax profit for the year WA30E B (—FF )\
ended 31st December, 2009 would increase/ S0 B o 1 BT A H At AT 5
decrease by HK$5,538,000 (2008: increase/ R MRN8 HIA R B
decrease by HK$6,204,000) if interest rates had REZENF A=+
been 30 basis points (2008: 50 basis points) H 1k 4 B 2 BBl A% T Ak
higher/lower and all other variables were held ¥, 5,538,000 0
constant. (ZFF)AE /Wb

6,204,0004 7C) °
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued) 7. ST H &)

b) Financial risks management objectives b) %5 M B 4 B H B B R

and policies (Continued) (#E)
Market risks (Continued) Wi B ()
-3
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) @) FIEEE (4E) g
&
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) IR T (#) %
Furthermore, in relation to the Group’s exposure BEAh > A B A 45 B T 3 é
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank BRAT A KA 3 > ik A1 6 E‘
borrowings, if interest rates had been 50 basis W sodk By (= FF I\ b=
points (2008: 50 basis points) higher/lower and AF S0 EY) i T A HA -
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s A R R MERr A S > AIALE
post-tax profit for the year ended 31st December, MEzE —FENLE+H
2009 would decrease/increase by HK$1,322,000 =+—H I 2 B 1R i
(2008: decrease/increase by HK$837,000). 8 A 11,322,000

WL (ZEE/NE @D/
4 N837,000% G ) ©

Tomson Group Limited % R4 HA A A

(iii) Equity price risk (iii) A A5 B

The Group’s equity instruments (classified as A £ R e A 7 g ()
investments held for trading and available-for- A G Kol it &
sale investments) expose the Group to equity &) i 78 A 32 TR A A TR
price risks. Management intends to manage Bat o A PHL R 95 o A F —
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of W B[] JRU B AR i 2 B 4
investments with different risk profiles. o AR i A B A B
Sensitivity analysis BURE 3BT

The sensitivity analyses below have been NI Z BURSE AT IR A
determined based on the exposure to equity A2 [ 7 i AR 22 JBOAS 8 77
price risks at the end of reporting period for the (A BLH5 12 A WAL AT 2
Group’s equity instruments excluding available- T B e 4 w2 AT it
for-sale investments measured at cost less any PG ) 2 A E s Ja B o 5

identified impairment losses. HE T B 7E o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)
(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective equity instruments

had been 10% (2008: 10%) higher/lower:

. post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2009 would increase/decrease
by HK$6,712,000 (2008: increase/decrease
approximately by HK$2,054,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of investments

held for trading; and

. other comprehensive income would
increase/decrease by HK$8,309,000 (2008:
profit increase/decrease approximately by
HK$4,832,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of listed available-

for-sale investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not representative of the Group’s equity risk as
it only reflects the impact of equity price changes
to equity securities held at the year end but not

the exposure during the year.

e

ST H )

b)

S5 ML g 4 BIL H B B BUR

(%

i 5 B ()

(i) A A5 B ()
R T ()

ik A B8 P A v 5 2 A A T
SR 10% (B E )\
10%) - HI :

e WE_FEZNFETZ
A=+—HItEEZ>
% B A% s A R B
BO& N T 52 B i 1
6,712,000
Jo ( EE AR B
WY #12,054,000%5
JT) s K

o AREEE Z H AT IR
Erl oo Iy R e
G 1A 5 ) i 1y
fm /w2 8,309,000
WIo (T T4
i KW &)
4,832,000%5 7T ) °

EBLRERE R o T U
A RE B B F TR R A 2
7 I R IBEAS (B A 5 B 2 2
B T IR S W AF IR 2 J
B o IR L AR E o A R BE AR
R AT A Ja g o
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2009 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets in the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management will monitor the
payment status of customers and perform necessary
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to

recover overdue debts.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the Directors of the Company consider that the

Group’s exposure to bad debts is minimal.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation. Other
than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant

concentration of credit risk.

Furthermore, trade receivables consist of a large

number of customers spread across diverse industries.

b)

7. ST H
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

b)

Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risks

The Group is not exposed to any significant liquidity
risk as it has sufficient funds to meet its financial

obligations when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group will consider to

raise bank borrowings when it is necessary.
Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate

at the end of the reporting period.

7. BT H »

b)

S5 b B 4 P B % BOSR
(#)

i ) ¥ 4 L B

FR A A 45 B R A TR AR 4 AR
B30 H AR AT A B RS R oA
A5 T T B L e S R
R

T A P ) 4 L By IR AR AR
B ER IR EER RN B
LBleSEER 28 HES LT
FR Y KT DA AT A 2 7 4 T
Lo A B < AR B o AR AR
B i A2 A 7 B SR 1) SR AT
£ o

i B B < e Y I B 7

AR FESN A J 0 A A B B
HZ B AR FIE L - R TS
AR A 4R B 7S W] RE 40 2R R
BABEN R B ZWE AR
Pr BUBL & i M R -t AR LA
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued) 7. ZWTH )

b)

Financial risks management objectives b) %5 M B 4 B H B B R
and policies (Continued) (7
Liquidity risks (Continued) ) A B (At )
Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued) B & & S 5 g 76 (4)
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Less than 3 months 6 months undiscounted carrying
interest rate 3 months  to 6 months to 1 year over 1 year cash flows amount
T =N =N AR S E R R
7R DL EAMA B4 /3 WA I i A4

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000 — HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
T#x T#x TH#L TH#L T#x T#x

As at 31st December, 2009 —-ZE L4

F+ZH=+—H
Non-derivative financial TR 2 5 0
liabilities
Trade and other payables M5 5 fie sl Jk
HATE 3% - 47,581 51,929 469,189 - 568,699 568,699
Bank borrowings BITfEN
— variable rate -#8 5.41% 4,388 15,748 8,777 374,342 403,255 330,569
51,969 67,677 477,966 374,342 971,954 899,268

As at 31st December, 2008 %% )\ 4

+ZA=+—H
Non-derivative financial ~ FEA 2 W £
liabilities
Trade and other payables AT B 51 M3
HoAb BT = 66,912 21,46 484,300 - 572,458 572,458
Bank borrowings BATIH
~ fixed rate —ER 5.90% 2,677 2,677 184,144 - 189,498 181,467
— variable rate -#8 6.87% 3,133 14,474 5,917 220,627 244,151 204,151
72,722 38,397 674,361 220,627 1,006,107 958,076
The above undiscounted cash flows amounts could il 7 ¥ 5 M 4% 07 2 s B > HI| E Ak
change if there are movements in floating interest rates o B BB 4 R e s ) o

subsequent to the reporting period.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Concinued)

9)

d)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted

market prices; and

o the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market

for identical assets or liabilities;

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

7. BT H »

o

d)

AT

P57 B AR T (E
EMR

o RIEUMERGR B ARG KR
ERME M55 2 EME
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. ST H »)

d) Fair value measurements recognised in d) REE I BHR B RS
the consolidated statement of financial A VA wHE )

position (Continued)

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived o B =N TER R IR AN

=

from valuation techniques that include inputs TE AR T B A T G R (e g

for the asset or liability that are not based on B A IR 2 B E &

observable market data (unobservable inputs). BEZAGET RS - §

(o\}

s

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had i I N N S S ;‘?

no Level 2 or 3 fair value measurements financial AR SR EFIE M TR Té

instruments. &

Level 1 E

— =

Bk =

HK$’000 E

T#x i

N

3

Financial assets at fair value through A PAE RN 2 2 B U E

5

profit or loss Y

Non-derivative financial assets held for trading e AT A A TS 80,387 (.'Je

g

Available-for-sale financial assets w3k iy 5 S s U Al é
Listed equity securities bR R R 83,095
Total &t 163,482

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the A AR E T B — A B T AR TR

current year. 0 e 414 o 98
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8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 8. B Mm KA
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OPERATIONS AND REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the

following headings:
(i) Property investment

— represents revenue from property management

and rental income
(ii) Property development and trading

—  represents gross revenue received and receivable

from sales of properties
(iii) Industrial operations

—  represents the gross revenue from sale of

manufactured PVC pipes
(iv) Leisure

—  represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
received and receivable from investments held for trading
under the business of securities trading, in addition to the

above aggregated revenue.

WA F5E LAR 4% JE A B

) PEBE

— IRV A A SR

i) PEBER BB

—  IRYEE Z T B
Wi i

(i) T-EEH

—  IREE T RE B TR
W g

R GHE 2

—  IRRE AT Rk W K
Bl e 5 Wi A

B DL _E WA SRS > K8 I iR MRS
WRE A EEET D EREREN
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8.

GROSS PROCEEDS FROM
OPERATIONS AND REVENUE
(Continued)

Revenue and gross proceeds from each type of business

for the year ended 31st December, 2009 consist of the

8.

RE BB BB #)

BE-_ZZNET_H=1+—HILH
JE A JH S 2 WA I KE 8 Wi 4 AR

followings: 6 T 51450 -
2009 2008
“EF(E CEFNE
HKS$°000 HK$000
T# T T
Revenue from sale of properties HEWEZBA 419,898 2,091,432
Revenue from sale of goods B T A 43,868 63,669
Revenue from rendering of services from 1 ff K Bk & £ 55 #2 i I 5 2
golf club operations A 90,257 79,545
Revenue from property rental and Yy 2ETH & X BB IR A
management fee 107,090 81,336
Revenue BA 661,113 2,315,982
Gross proceeds from sale of securities H A 2 Bl o 42,362 70,950
Gross proceeds from operations fit=gl &~ 3 k] 703,475 2,386,932

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1st January, 2009. HKFRS 8 requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by chief operating decision maker in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance. In
contrast, the predecessor standard (HKAS 14, Segment
Reporting) required an entity to identify two sets of segments
(business and geographical) using a risks and returns
approach, with the entity’s “system of internal financial
reporting to key management personnel” serving only as the

starting point for the identification of such segments.

vig hegl)

AEMOR _FFNE A HER
A i B 5 i YR R SR [
oy B o ol I 5 i o e JIDD S8R
FOR DL R R R E TR E IR
P K 2 B wAd b i 7 9 B 2 A B A
5 B AN R] A8 P 22 1 3 2 A 5 o Bk
BB HEE ML 2T @t #
A O KR at e Rl 551458 [0 Bk
1) BUE 2 FBR R JE B K B RO i
B WAL B (ST RO ) > T A
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Dk

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was
business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has not
resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable segments
determined in accordance with HKAS 14. However, the
adoption of HKFRS 8 has changed the basis of measurement

of the segment revenue.

In prior years, segment information reported externally was
analysed on the basis of the types of business which is the
same as information reported to the chief operating decision
maker. In addition to those set out in Note 8(i) to (iv),
the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8 include
securities trading segment which is dealing in investments

held for trading.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable segments. Amounts reported for
the prior periods had been restated to conform to the
requirements of HKFRS 8.

9.

NRER =)

A 5 T o BT S S 4
510 R HB (R TR 50143557
B TR AE MET (R
L) S8BENE BRI L B
SYEUR TR IEE < SR RA (VB
B ) SSUEC O A BT 2
e ELy

AR AR B > A Bk 2 0 FHE R TS
e W5 JUBAR Jo 2R YR 4T 20 T > 1B B
la] = B2 5 25 PR3 A B ORI
BRI RE8 () 2 (iv) S > A FARE (il
PABS YRR ) S5 85k 2 i A BUR |
FHEMEREZEFEE B

B B WA RERZ 0
Hran o R 1E W 2 s e
SFCE I B R L) SR8SR Z KUE
HF o

2009 R
Property
Property Development Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading  Operations Leisure Trading Total
WEHR
IEZI4 Wi TEEHE  WEEE  #FHA it
HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000
F#T FH#L T#x T#x F#L FH#L
GROSS PROCEEDS BE R
FROM OPERATIONS - - 25K A
SEGMENT REVENUE 107,090 419,898 43,868 90,257 42,362 703,475
RESULTS Ed
Segment profit (loss) B A (E) 2,995,681 216,182 (4,302) (13,499) 23497 3,217,559
Other unallocated income HMAF 2 BlA 36,878
Unallocated expenses S ic b (40,937)
Finance costs HEL (21,700)
3,191,800
Share of results of associates  ME MM B8 /A 7 2 41 (2,017)
Share of results of jointly iR BtEZER
controlled entities 1,063
Profit before taxation FR 4 i i A1 3,190,846
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NREF w)

2008 e 2 AN
Property
Property  Development Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Trading Total

B 3 3

MERE Y&l THEK T WA EH Fat &

HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000 %

Tk Tk T T Tl Tk o

(=2

(=)

[\l

GROSS PROCEEDS BRI R 5
FROM OPERATIONS - - Z¥iKA k)
SEGMENT REVENUE 81,336 2,091,432 63,669 79,545 70,950 2,386,932 —~

g

<
RESULTS E3 | _
Segment profit (loss) oA (B4 54,798 1,064,060 6,501 (5,034) (32,739) 1,087,586 =
=

&

Other unallocated income HEMAFAHBA 105,670 .%
Unallocated expenses AT oH L (75,107) =
Finance costs HEL (22,242) ﬁ
N

1,095,907 3

Share of results of associates  JE{f /A 7l 2 5 (1,547) E
Share of results of jointly LA EbE s £5 'i
controlled entities 11,008 §
@)

o

Profit before taxation e o 3 1,105,368 é
— 2

=
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Dk

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Concinued)

Except for the presentation of segment revenue which is
different from the reported revenue in the consolidated
income statement, the accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in Note 4. For the details of revenue from each
type of business and reconciliation of segment revenue
to the Group’s revenue of HK$661,113,000 (2008:
HK$2,315,982,000), please refer to Note 8.

There are inter-segment sales in the segments of Property
Investment and Industrial Operations. However, as the
amount is immaterial, the relevant information is not
regularly provided to chief operating decision maker for

review.

Segment profit (loss) represents the results by each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’
salaries, share of results of associates and jointly controlled
entities, other non-recurring income and expenses and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Executive
Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities are not presented as the chief
operating decision maker review the consolidated financial
position of the Group as a whole to assess their performance.

The management is more focus on the results of the Group.

9. NEER w)

B 43 S A B4R G 3 2% v ) i
AZ 25 XARR S s gat
B B A 4 [ O 54 2 B s BOR AR ] o
FREB WA FEE K B LA
£ U A661,113,000% 70 ( —F TN
4F 1 2,315,982,0009 T ) 2 B IR FE 1 #
B EES ©

W) SEE T T35 0 JH 2 R A i
B Z &R R AER - WA
E ) 2 AR R R R

SR ¥R A (1R 45 45 00 U S50 3If
WA FEA P RATBUSAS - #HHH -
LB AR 2 KRR B G E AL
SR FL A I AR PR U B B S K il
BB T AT S R R E R
[WES L Paie T

EEBEERLEUFNALBM LGS
SRS IR UL LA A A R A R
B BOlh 2 5 R E K AR - B
JEW S WA 2 A
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NREF w)

Other information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss:

Jo Al %
AR A 3 2 S R A -

Property
Property  Development Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Trading Other Total ﬁ
hkER =
/ES 3 REEE TERE O WARE RN b wit &
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 2
T#L T#T T#T T#x T#x T#T T#L <
2009 i £IL &
]
Depreciation of property, EN VNG LiiN- 5
plant and equipment 2,000 1,949 4,009 15,833 = 1,342 25,133 =
Amortisation of lease premium THAEE R
for land - - 693 5,727 - 5 6,425 =
Bad debts written off and allowance  SEHRHUH ORSEHRH (i ;
for bad and doubtful debts 1,578 - 4567 - - - 6,145 g
Net gain on disposal/fair value fEmELE/ E
changes of investment properties AFEEHEEZ g
i 5 2,950,178 - - - - - 2950178 EN
Unrealised gain on fair value changes i &4t & /A - 5 ) 3
of investments held for trading EEZABHN S - - - - 19,036 - 19,036 E
s
2008 “RBNE g
C
Depreciation of property, EN Y il 3
plant and equipment 1,811 1,964 3,854 15,971 - 1,371 24,971 g
Amortisation of lease premium B FiN=E ik g
for land - - 693 5,711 - 9 6,413
(Written back) allowance TSR ([ ) Bt
for bad and doubtful debts (416) (5) (5,415) 112 = - (5,724)
Net gain on fair value changes REWENTH
of investment properties SEE L2 I 17,535 - - - - - 17,535
Unrealised loss on fair value changes &5 & /A FHEZH)
of investments held for trading EEZABHER - - - = 43,490 = 43,490

104

B EEEPZER

BEEZEZAE+T A=+ —HIL4E
> i S B R T 8 6 4 P i R
K% F fs Z WA Al £482,402,000%
JG 5109,201,000% JG > 1 A< 4 [ 2 48
WA 43 B #112.46% 5% 16.52% °

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, revenue from two
largest customers in the property development and trading
segment amounted to HK$82,402,000 and HK$109,201,000
which contributed to approximately 12.46% and 16.52%,

respectively, of the Group’s total revenue.

HEZEZNFE+_HA=+—HI4
BE 5 Ol 4 BE — K5 Ly AN 4R [ 2 AR A
B Rk 109%8k DL | -

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, no single customer

contributed to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.
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D

10.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations, assets and revenue are substantially
situated in or derived from the mainland China. The Group’s
revenue of property investment and property development
and trading from external customers is based on location
of properties sold and leased out. Revenue of industrial
operations from external customers is based on the location
of customers. Revenue of leisure from external customers is

based on the location of services provided.

The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred tax
assets and available-for-sale investments, amounted to
HK$6,399,848,000 (2008: HK$6,848,600,000) by
geographical location of the assets and operation of the
associates and jointly controlled entities are substantially

situated in the mainland China.

Analysis of Group’s revenue by each type of business is set

out in Note 8.

OTHER INCOME

9. ZRUER a1

R R ) 8

AR 2 KR8 S R R EBA
IR B RO B o AS AR 2 W SR
B W) SR R R B S OM B A IR
H 5 W) 3 K Hh AR ) 36 22 i A O
TEEF BB WAL F F 2 e
Wb 5 T T SEB5 B A0 B 6 A 4% $2 L AR
B5 2 BT AE o

74 S5 B i b B 43 2 JE B A
(7 f 455 0 %iE ol TH & 28 % AT 36 o B 4
%) £ 3£6,399,848,0003 0 ( —EF )\
4F 1 6,848,600,000% JC ) J Bt 5 N F) B
AECEREEE T EEMRREK

o

i

A% B T 52 45 B 26 2 WO 93 e T A
B ES

10. H A A

2009 2008
“EF(E  ETNE
HKS$°000 HK$000
T#7x T T
Other income included: A e A L35
Interest income ANSY N 16,808 25,219
Dividends from available-for-sale G k'S - P 3=N N
investments — listed — bk 2,557 5,114
Dividends from available-for-sale AT AR R 2 i B R A
investments — unlisted —J kb - 31,487
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11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

FNEFZH=+—HILFE

11. oAb B33 B s 11

2009 2008

“EE(E  CEFTNE

HKS$’000 HK$000

T#7x T T
-3
Bad debts written off and I B e R AR (B4 g
(allowance) written back for bad [m] 4% &
and doubtful debrs (6,145) 5,724 g
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, W 3 RS ek (g
plant and equipment and lease T EEH 2 (EH) ;‘?
premium on land, net of written off Wi 4 VA > 0 R BB < AR (828) 23,404 E‘
Gain on disposal of an associate B — W A W 2 AR 3,185 — ¥
Gain on dissolution of a subsidiary fige HiC— [T BT B8 2 B 2 ik A 6,084 - -
Gain on dissolution of a jointly i H— &8 B Ui AR g
controlled entity 2,735 _ %
Net exchange gain BEE 58,14 # 1 BH 375 14,988 E
Impairment loss on broadcasting right JEE 7% HE ol s 18 - (4,612) gg
3
5,406 39,504 ‘é
3
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. E RN :
E

2009 2008

“EF(E  —ETNE

HKS$’000 HK$ 000

T#x T

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable — ZH it F.4F N & BB 1 2 106

within five years AT E R Z A B 25,540 26,941

Less: interest capitalised (Note 20) BRI E (HfiE20) (3,840) (4,699)

21,700 22,242

Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from specific

borrowings.

EfRE -

AAE AR A A Z EE AR A
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13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BB %A

2009 2008
“RBAE S FFT)NEF
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T 7T
5 SV
B Profit before taxation has been arrived IR B0 I da ) 1B
=] .
:? at after charging:
g
T Staff costs B TlA 61,885 54,946
é Provident fund scheme contributions INTE & EI K 4,720 3,946
a
§ Total staff costs (Note) B LA (fEE) 66,605 58,892
»
E Auditors’ remuneration % B A < 2,622 2,738
?; Depreciation of property, Wy 3 ~ B Bk s 3 85
&l plant and equipment 25,133 24,971
- Amortisation of lease premium for land 1 & 2 F i &
E (included in administrative expenses) (FFATTECE ) 6,425 6,413
E Minimum lease payment under REMNE 2 RIKHE
-g operating leases 6,603 6,471
'E; Cost of inventories recognised as expenses e 52 /4 2l 2 17 B LA 157,849 854,723
(=2
8
& and after crediting: WM EFEA
=]
=
= Gross rental income from investment G Wy A G A R
properties 90,450 69,907
Less: direct operating expenses from g AFENEAERAZ
investment properties that BREWEZ
generated rental income HigEEH
107 during the year (15,656) (12,552)
Net rental income from &Y 4 A T
investment properties 74,794 57,355
Dividends from investments held for FEREZREKA
trading (included in net gain (loss) (FFA & B & ik 4
in investments held for trading) (K18 F5E) 454 1,371
Net gain on disposal of investment B B G W 3 2 i s TR AR
properties (included in net gain (FIAREMELE
on disposal/fair value changes of ANV EBBEEZ
investment properties) (@ REE ) 92,557 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 05 0 0 M ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBLR & A a0)
(Continued)
Note: MEE -
The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors METRAGEMNTESEZME W
as follows: T
-3
Salaries, Employer’s &
allowances  contribution g
and other to pension Total 2
Name of Director EHAHR Fees benefits scheme emoluments S
Wil el MEZMK H
Wwa R It bR Lk K3 T 4> 44 78 &
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 T:,‘
Tilx Tilx Filx Tilx E
2009 SRR =
&«
Executive directors $uirE G =
Madam Hsu Feng L s g = 8,932 12 8,944 g
Mr. Tong Albert % TR ek - 1,801 12 1,813 g
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles R e = 886 12 898 IR
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen HERR B e A - 1,471 - 1,471 "g
Independent non-executive directors B I PuAT g E
Madam Tung Wai Yee PRt 144 - - 144 g
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RBP4 100 - - 100 C
Mr. Lee Chan Fai BTG 100 - - 100 $
E
344 13,090 36 13,470
2008 ZRENEF
Executive directors £ Ry
Madam Hsu Feng R Mt - 9,094 12 9,106
Mr. Tong Albert YRR GE — 1,799 12 1,811 108
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles W T e - 235 3 238
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen AR E A - 1,471 - 1,471
Independent non-executive directors B AT g
Madam Tung Wai Yee wHEKL L 144 - - 144
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar RIEFSEA 94 - - 94
M. Lee Chan Fai 2 B 5 A 94 = - 94
332 12,599 27 12,958
No Directors waived any emoluments for both years. A T A AR E A B I EE S TR 5 AT ] P
S

e
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Ny S Pa WY
13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 13. BRBLHY &eA a0
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December, 2009, three (2008: B2 _EENET+_H=1+—HIL&E
three) of the five highest paid individuals of the Group were JE o 7EAS 58 B A o B I 2 AL N
Directors. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining two ZEM(ZEFFNF =) BESF-
= (2008: two) highest paid individuals were as follows: HAERWAL ( T AR WAL B 7
: A2 B S T
B
)
_g 2009 2008
5 ZRFAE  TTAE
g HK$°000 HKS$000
§ T# F i T
523t
B
E Basic salaries, housing allowances, EAFE B R
b other allowances and benefits in kind HoAth 7 JE KB W) R £5 2,199 2,834
S
& Provident fund scheme contributions INHE A REE 12 12
z 2,211 2,846
£
&
-§ The number of these individuals whose emoluments fell A PN WIE 38 AN g
» within the following band is as follows: i
=
o
&
& Emoluments T 4 Number of staff
g HTA¥
2009 2008
“REQUE  FER)\F
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 AN #1,000,00045 75 - 1
109 HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 21,500,000 7G 2 =
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001%5 7T 222,000,000 JG - 1
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BN A Z IR

14. TAXATION 14. BLB
2009 2008
e 2% S YA
HK$°000 HK$000
T# 7 T T
The charge comprises: SO A
PRC (other than Hong Kong) Enterprise &4~ 5 B J& N A7 B 24 5 588
Income Tax calculated at tax rates S5 P AE ) ik I 2 BLAT B
prevailing in the respective EitBEZ B (ANEFEEE)
jurisdictions where the relevant 1 ZE RSBl
individual group companies operate 145,108 142,228
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) o [ - b 1 (E 626,397 349,555
Dividend withholding tax =kl ¢) 517 =
Underprovision (overprovision) in prior  #8 £ 4F FE i A &
years (358 )
— PRC (other than Hong Kong) — R (AEHEEE)
Enterprise Income Tax 1> 2E T 15 B 209 (2,000)
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —H MG 1 21
772,232 489,804
Deferred tax charge (credit) (Note 30) PEAEBLIE 2 (HE4R)
(Mtit30) 1,025,827 (5,435)
Total tax charges for the year 4 JiE Fd JH BH S S 1,798,059 484,369

=
&
2
&
(2
=)
=)
(o'}
g
=]
oy
L’
~
=
-]
a
s
<

=
&
=
o
E
&
HH
Ay
ba-]
3
E
oS |
(=9
=
2
J
a
e
§
=

110




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 05 0 0 M ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

14. TAXATION (Continued) 14. ﬁﬁ (%)
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The Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008:
16.5%). No tax is payable on the profit for the year arising
in Hong Kong since the assessable profit is wholly absorbed
by tax losses brought forward. Taxation arising in other
jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the

relevant jurisdictions.

On 16th March, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law
of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”)
by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On 6th
December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New
Law and Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate
from 15% to 25% with effect from Ist January, 2008. There
will be a transitional period for enterprises that currently
receive preferential tax treatments granted by relevant tax
authorities. Enterprises that are subject to a PRC income
tax rate lower than 25% may continue to enjoy the lower
PRC income tax rate and gradually transfer to the new PRC
income tax rate within five years after the effective date of

the New Law.

The major subsidiaries have their operations located in
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC, according to the New
Law which was effective on 1st January, 2008, the income tax
rate was 18% with effect from 1st January, 2008 and will be
gradually increased to 25% in 5 years. The income tax rate

for the year ended 31st December, 2009 is 20%.

FWFIEBT A 2B 516.5% (=
TN 116.5% )  EH B FI E
7R B JE s 1R K B > TR A AR AF R I
48 7 AR v Uik R 2 B 5 B JE - 7 At
F) R RE [ A 2 BTE T A B R kR
% 2 BLAT B R 55 -

REELEZHTNH > PELIHE
FE A3 M (b AT B
Y ([HBE]) R ZFERLFE+ =
H7SH > o 8B 55 B a8 A 6 B v B e
A RI) o B B i e LB A RIS B R A
ZEZNFE—H—HREH15%HE S
25% o B ¥ = A BA Bl B A I 0 B
W51 B 2 A SE R A I T o AR 25%
Z B T 1S B R 2 A 3 ] A
= A B B P A B R NI R R B
A RO AR AR N - 1B D I 2 B
FRARBLER o

B A R 2 S LA B i
HOH I IR —FFNFE—H—H
AR BB B RN —H —
H i 2 P A5 BB 3 5 18% » i 74 1 4F
N2 3 3 25% B E —F F LA
ToA=tT - HIEFEZ AR ER
20% °
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14. TAXATION (Continued)

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

FAEF A=t —HIEEE

14. BEYH (41)

A JEE S B R 2R 22 BR B A i

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: ZEIRUWT
2009 2008
SRBAE  BEARE .
HKS$°000 HKS$'000 0
T# 7 T# T i‘
S
Profit before taxation (excluding share W B e A (AN 6045 HE AL (‘g
of results of associates and BrgAr ReahEs 5
jointly controlled entities) ¥*45) 3,191,800 1,095,907 E‘
g
<
Tax at the domestic income tax rate TS 1l BT 15 B #£20% =
of 20% (2008: 18%) (Noce) (ZFEN\HF:18%) 5t H e
B (M at) 638,360 197,263 g
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised o Tl 58 B T s 1R 2 s R B - 5,898 &
Tax effect of expenses that are not fiiE 7E JE SR Ve A IR El]-:g
deductible in determining taxable AHAEMBLR X 2 3
profit BB e 28,709 16,220 g
Tax effect of deductible temporary R e AR AT AR N Bl 2 B Iy g‘
difference not recognised 72 B 2 B B 5,192 - 3
Tax effect of income that is not assessable i & & & Bt iai 1] RF 0 78 1 iR Bl é
in determining taxable profit WA 2 B i 2 (4,072) (18,144) &
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) DATE Rl R8  Bd JE s 4E
not recognised (4,679) -
Underprovision (overprovision) 8 1 4F BE BT 15 B A 2
of income taxes in prior years (BB 210 (1,979)
Effect on PRC LAT EP B - 4t 3 R B 2 B 2 928,657 286,635 112
Dividend withholding tax SEAF 6 517 =
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate @Fﬁ A0 SIE o TEL A T o % 1
for deferred tax over current tax rate e B B = 3 R SRR
on taxable (deductible) temporary (AT HnBL) B wp £ R 2 54
differences 205,165 (1,524)
Tax expense for the year A BT B 3¢ 1,798,059 484,369

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 30.

O S B IH 2w A O M RE30

HFEE < T BR FE T A5 Bl e A AR T SR
ik 2 A (8 2 T A 5 o

Note: The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the

jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are based.
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15. DIVIDEND

16

The Directors recommend a payment of special dividend
of 13.5 HK cents per share (2008: final dividend of
5.5 HK cents per share) amounting to approximately
HK$181,918,000 (2008: HK$72,793,000) for the year
ended 31st December, 2009 which is subject to approval by

the sharcholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Of the dividend paid during the year, approximately
HK$56,630,000 was settled in shares under the Company’s
scrip dividend scheme approved by the Company on 5th
June, 2009 in respect of the final dividend of the year ended
31st December, 2008.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

15.

16.

H{i IO

HHEERRMNEBEZE -FZZNE+ A
=+ — H IR RS A 135
WAL (TN R R .59
fill) > & 4L 47181,918,0008k 7T ( = F &
J\AE 72,793,000 70 ) > MEZERE BRI
JRE JiE 5 o AR e > 7 AR -

MRAE AN R R = FFILHFES H B H 5
BE ZE)E+H=+—HIL4E
B 2 AR B S HEUE 2 DLBEAR B R
AAEFE B S 4956,630,0003 76 T
DA BEA S2 A o

(3 2 v

AN ) HE 45 R A A 15 IR RE AR R
AR BN TS ARIR DA T R R

E following data:
5
7 2009 2008
3 “RFAE  —FTNE
S HK$’000 HKS$°000
e T# 7 T i# T
=
&
g Earnings #A
Profit for the year attributable A0 DL R R A A K
to owners of the Company B AR B R 2 A
for the purposes of basic earnings per HE %5 7 AN A ek A
share and diluted earnings per share 1,387,406 451,986
Number of shares JBe oy ¥ H
1 13 Weighted average number of ordinary ATAEREAR A 2
shares for the purpose of basic earnings 8 JB T HEE - X
per share 1,334,514,045 1,324,612,120
Effect of dilutive potential e 78 B 2 T T f v R
ordinary shares
— share options — i e HE 2,233,136 852,909
Weighted average number of AT E G AR AR
ordinary shares for the purpose of 8 JB T HEE - 1
diluted earnings per share 1,336,747,181 1,325,465,029
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17. EP X
The Group
A 4R
HKS$’000
T#7x
i
AT VALUATION B Al fid §
&
At 1st January, 2008 R_ZFEZNFE—H—H 5,754,180 %
Additions nE 1,291 ‘é
Gain on fair value changes ASEIE )A€ 17,535 fu
Exchange adjustments T 52, 3 #& 339,794 g
<
At 31st December, 2008 REZEFFNFE+_HA=1+—H 6,112,800 -
%
Additions Vi B 42,198 =
Gain on fair value changes on date of transfer RBAFEYEE HAVHE E
to properties held for sale SR E R 2 I AR 882,096 gg
Transfer to properties held for sale A FEY) (2,251,840) 3
Net gain on fair value changes on date of disposal A EE AP EEE) E
(Note) FE A 2 W3R VR (M AE) 92,557 E
Disposal HE (1,316,014) g
Gain on fair value changes at the end of HE R A FHEES §
the reporting period A Z AR 1,975,525 é
Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 34 B« 7,638
At 31st December, 2009 R oZZ2ET__H=1—H 5,544,960
Note: For the disposal of investment properties during the year, the Miat: SR FER N EZREYE N EE
net gain on fair value changes of approximately HK$92,557,000 H A 5 8 7E A 2 0L 48 i 3 AN 1 14
at date of disposal had been netted off against relevant selling 92,557,000k 7C L 411 [ AR B 8 & 2 1
expenses of approximately HK$98,863,000. #198,863,000% JC ©
The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong A2 [ BB W) N B DL A

Kong and are held under operating leases. Wir A E A o
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. #EWE =)
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During the year, in view of the market situation, the
Directors of the Company decided to change the use of
certain of the Group’s investment properties, whereby the
Group engaged independent contractors to substantially
renovate and upgrade these properties with a view to sell
them to selected target property buyer groups. Accordingly,
these properties were transferred from the category of
investment properties to the category of properties held for
sale on the dates when the renovation and upgrade works
commenced. The fair values of these properties as at the dates
of transfer were determined by independent professional
valuer at HK$2,251,840,000 using direct comparison
approach, resulting in a valuation gain of HK$882,096,000
which was recognised in the consolidated income statement

for the year ended 31st December, 2009.

The fair value of the Group’s remaining investment
properties at 31st December, 2009 have been arrived at
on the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by a
professional independent valuer not connected with the
Group. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market
evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. As
a result of the valuation, a gain on fair value changes of
approximately HK$1,975,525,000 (2008: HK$17,535,000)
was credited to the consolidated income statement for the

year ended 31st December, 2009.

RN BT > AR E) B e T
LT AREEBEYEZ E B &
SEHE RATE R R E s
W) 26 AT BB X T A > DA B T AR T
BAEYEE R - HL > ZEWED
AT S T TAR B bR E A A Y
RN AR EWERT - ZEWER
W HE B 2 FE B 8 7 B 2 A Rl
i FH B 4 bU B 1 792,251,840,000
W T o 35 Bk (H IR 45 882,096,000 %%
Lo R E LR E ERIFE+
H =+ — B IR B 2 45 A R 2R A e

2
i

REEZNETH=Z14—H AEHE
B BR T G W) N T Y 4 B A 4 [
U i 3R] 2 %) ) N S A IR B O
AT RS (E 2 B VE AR © Al (E )9 275 R
W TG E EEED o hEESAT
1A 5 B 7 A2 Ui 45 £91,975,525,000%5 7
( ZFF I\ 117,535,000 70) ELREA
BE _TEAEF _HA=+—HIL%
EZ 4B FIBRNA -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B VA 5 8 % B ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. B EYE w)

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to A AL F ROE T R A > DUBRIROH &
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured BV A 1 (8 R ) W M 4 TR A
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted B AE K FHE - M M R SE AR E
for as investment properties. JE L
=
The carrying amount of investment properties held outside U ETEFBUSMSAE R EYEZ IR g
Hong Kong shown above comprises: [N &
[
S
N
2009 2008 &
SRBAE  CTTNE &
HK$°000 HK$000 E
T# 7 T T 2
Held under: LT HARA
Long lease REAHA 4,447,780 5,025,500
Medium-term lease I H 1,097,180 1,087,300
5,544,960 6,112,800

=
&
=
&
E
&
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. W% ~ W5 Beat i
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Leasehold Construction fixtures and
land and Plant and work-in- equipment and
buildings equipment progress motor vehicles Total
iR . BB RHA
= L. S 1Y T ERTHR BRI WA
g HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
¢ T#x T#xL T#x T#L T#x
()
3 THE GROUP A
o~
g.' At cost A
8 At Ist January, 2008 RoBENE—A—H 505,199 67,424 - 109,553 682,176
& Additions B 1,833 653 - 11,542 14,028
it Disposals HE (5,530) - - (12,388) (17,918)
i Written off s - = = (634) (634)
E Exchange adjustments HE 55, 3 29,107 4,191 - 6,029 39,327
?; At 31st December, 2008 REZZZNF
al +ZHA=+—H 530,609 72,268 = 114,102 716,979
_ Additions NE 847 4,203 5,572 6,399 17,021
. Disposals ik (210) - = (13,671) (13,881)
5 Written off i 4 - - - (4,376) (4,376)
£ Transfer from properties HHEBERETY ¥
= under development - - 4,852 - 4,852
-§ Exchange adjustments e 6, 74 4 796 113 = 162 1,071
é At 31st December, 2009 B EE N
2 +ZA=1+—H 532,042 76,584 10,424 102,616 721,666
g Accumulated depreciation Rl 4
.FI
# At Ist January, 2008 REFENFE—A—H 156,989 56,281 = 86,635 299,905
Provided for the year A A B 17,346 1,103 - 6,522 24,971
Eliminated on disposals BT (443) - = (10,372) (10,815)
Written off s - - - (570) (570)
Exchange adjustments HE 1, o 9,142 3,497 - 4,728 17,367
At 31st December, 2008 R R E N
+ZA=+—H 183,034 60,881 = 86,943 330,858
1 17 Provided for the year S A 17,247 1,289 - 6,597 25,133
Eliminated on disposals AR Tk 8 (25) - - (11,025) (11,050)
Written off s - = = (3,938) (3,938)
Exchange adjustments T 3, 8 277 95 - 127 499
At 31st December, 2009 REEENE
+ZA=+—H 200,533 62,265 = 78,704 341,502
Carrying values J i {E
At 31st December, 2009 R-ZZ A
+ZA=E+—H 331,509 14,319 10,424 23,912 380,164
At 31st December, 2008 RFENE
+ZA=+—H 347,575 11,387 - 27,159 386,121
The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong A AL [ 2 FH B b Hh A ES DA AN Il

under medium-term lease. il CREF S S
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19. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 19. -3 AL # A
The Group’s lease premium for land comprises: A5 2t AH B R LA
2009 2008
ZEFE CETNE

HK$’000 HK$°000 =
THE Tt £
&
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: TERB A RA 2 21 §
(o\}
Medium lease A AH 4 185 392 g
&
&
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: s LIS AFHA A 2 L4t Té
Long lease = A 255,661 88,099 &
255,846 88,491 e
%
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Sy B A A E
Current assets B 6,426 6,411 HH
Non-current assets I il B E 249,420 82,080 gf
g
255,846 88,491 |
:
S
=
3
§
=
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20. PROPERTIES UNDER 20. FRPPE
DEVELOPMENT
The Group
3 3L

2009 2008
§1 ZFFAE —FTNFE
§ HKS$’000 HK$000
o T FibTE
2
=]
E: At 1st January, at cost A=A — B A 1,128,726 526,074
g Additions B 1,311,839 966,168
g Interest capitalised EARAL S 3,840 4,699
g Transferred from lease premium for land ~ # 5 T Hifl & % = 282,599
2 Transferred to properties held for sale BAREY K = (678,740)
?; Transferred to property, BAYE - BB B M
= plant and equipment (4,852) -
; Exchange adjustments [E b7, 5 H& 1,795 27,926
=}
E; At 31st December, at cost At H=1—H #aAR 2,441,348 1,128,726
§ Properties under development under current assets of WEEEANMBERSTY ED
:; approximately HK$1,994,378,000 (2008: HK$1,106,588,000) 1,994,378,000% ot ( = F F )\ 4 :
ﬁ are expected to be released after twelve months from the end 1,106,588,000%5 7T ) T it AS € 114 i 5 ]
i of reporting period. KA ZAH A R EEB -
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21. GOODWILL 21. F§%

The Group
A 4R
HKS$’000
T#7x
Cost and carrying value JAS T HiR T (L
At st January, 2008, 31st December, 2008 and T EEZNFE—H—H
31st December, 2009 +-HA=+—H X
—“EEFNFE+_HAH=+—H 33,288

Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”)
of a wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property

development and trading activities.

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, management of
the Group determined that there was no impairment of the

CGU containing goodwill.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was measured based
on fair value less costs to sell calculation by reference to
observable market price for the underlying properties. It
was determined by management’s past experience, based on
the estimated gross profit from selling of properties to be
developed, taking into the consideration of the prevailing

market price.

P — W R IS A F B &
FE A B R% o E A R R
S

EBEFFNFT+_A=1t—H1
AT A AR A PR R Ol A B 4
AR AL R

BREErRamaTE eHgE2 54
B 4 2 2 LB T G R AR R R A - (E
ol A TR R R e H R A B
9 308 1 8 B bR 2 > AR IR R B EE 0 )
EMEMHEFTBHEF 5 RERK
R
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

H IkR4F B

22. JABE A V) Z i A

The Group
AL

2009 2008

ZERhAE e e AN

HKS$’000 HK$°000

T#x T T

Cost of unlisted investments in associates A4 28 & 2 IE 1 & & A 30,203 41,809

Share of post-acquisition losses and JRE A1 s i 4% s 1R B At

other comprehensive income, 2 TH Y A 0 B AR B O R

net of dividend received (7,573) (17,235)

22,630 24,574

Amounts due from associates T 2 A ) KK 9,456 10,323

32,086 34,897

During the year, the Group disposed of its entire 25% equity
interest in an associate, Shanghai Tomson Guo Jian Concrete
Co., Ltd at a consideration of HK$3,931,000 and resulted in
a gain on disposal of HK$3,185,000.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

AN > AR 4R B DA AR 13,931,000 T6
B HOA — [ A\ i B AR
1A PR Al 2 2 8B259% EHE » 4¢ T =
43,185,000 70 2 B i 4

A 4R 1 W O R R BB R R A

associates is set out below: T &
2009 2008
ZERBhAE e AN
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T
Total assets ML E 121,571 194,824
Total liabilities A E (65,127) (157,661)
Net assets FEE 56,444 37,163
Group’s share of associates” net assets AL IS AR 2 T EE 22,630 24,574
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. R B AR ZHERR (41)

Year ended Year ended
2009 2008
®E D
“RRAE CFFT)NEFE
W AE 4 -
HK$°000 HKS$'000 0
T# T &
(=)
S
Revenue A 29,616 30,987 g
5
Loss for the year S 1R (6,291) (2,047) Té
<
<
Other comprehensive income At 4 T R 5 214 3,459 -
%
Group’s share of associates’ other A 4R ) 4F JE AL I A Rl 2 %
comprehensive income for the year HoAth 24 T AR 73 1,749
H
Group’s share of associates’ loss for 2 4E AR AL B A R 2 g-i
the year Rl (2,017) (1,547) E
=
Group’s share of associates’ loss and 2 45 AR AL R A R 2 5
other comprehensive income Y 15 S At 4 T K 4 g
for the year (1,944) 202 E
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free B8 S ) RO T S AR A o B I S
and have no fixed repayment terms. 7E 12 3 o
In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from RS B A A AT R R R
associates will not be repayable within twelve months from IR A A0 A R fE R - F - 5% 0E 122
the end of the reporting period and accordingly, the amounts EAAE IR B -
have been classified as non-current assets.
Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2009 are FEBEAAR _FEZNLFET A

included in Note 38. = H 2w R M EE38 o
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY 23. B AEZ R
CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The Group
3 3L
2009 2008

‘; ZFFAE —FTNFE
§ HKS$’000 HK$000
o Tt FibTE
2
S
E Cost of unlisted investments INEBMNEZ I ETHIRESA
& in jointly controlled entities 130,185 158,307
g Share of post-acquisition profits, JRE A1 o 4% i ) >
g net of dividend received 2R B ik ik B = 6,046
2 Exchange difference arising from BASEREREEZ
?; translation of jointly controlled entities VEE 58, 7% % 29,232 34,548
al
o 159,417 198,901
E Amount due from a jointly BB FERK
;E controlled entity 513 513
3
é 159,930 199,414
S
% During the year, Shanghai Nice Year Villa Real Estate N AR E 2G4 EE
g Co., Ltd, a jointly controlled entity of the Group, ceased BEMEARAF DKL HEGEE

its business operation and dissolved with distribution of S i HC> T127,618,000% 76 E 43 it £ A

HK$27,618,000 to the Group and resulted in a gain on £EH > B E H22,735,0004% 7C & i B

dissolution of HK$2,735,000. I £ o

123
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY 23. N BEEZIHER )

CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

A B A 5 [ B A 5 A S 2 A A ) B

Summarised financial information in respect of jointly

controlled entities attributable to the Group’s interest therein BERMEMT
is set out below:
=
2009 2008 g
ZRBRAE R T)N\E &
HKS$’000 HK$°000 )
_ o Q
T 7 T i# T £
&
~
Current assets i B 56,312 94,146 T:,‘
3
Non-current assets JE Ui B 121,845 127,864 —
i
&
Current liabilities B A 1 (18,483) (22,852) %
E
5 e &
Non-current liabilities EI =Rt (257) (257) %
T
Year ended Year ended E
2009 2008 &
=]
B HE 3
_ . =
ZERBhAE ZEBE )N é
I3 1k 4 B £
HKS$’000 HKS$000
T #C F i T
Income recognised in consolidated T G A I TR 2 e R A 2
income statement 83,250 108,169 124
Expenses recognised in consolidated T B A A T 2 e R B S
income statement (82,187) (97,161)
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23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY 23. N BEEZIHER )
CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is 1
T

A 2 RO TS AR - B Bl
B

S

o
=]
unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. Iéi]

In the opinion of the Directors, the amount due from a EHEEE AR TEE R A
jointly controlled entity will not be repayable within twelve BAPR  —E A R - UL - 5% kIR
months of the end of the reporting period and accordingly, V5B & E o

the amount has been classified as non-current assets.

&
g
e
3
@
e
=
o
=
B.
a
A
§
e
i
E
2
=
»
&l

Details of jointly controlled entity at 31st December, 2009 BEAER-FEFNEFTH=4—
are included in Note 38. H Z 5 1 O B 5138 o
24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 24. I B B RE
INVESTMENTS
5 Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2009 WZEENETZA=Z+—Hwfit
E; comprise: A RE AL
3 The Group
<
8 L
ul 2009 2008
2 SRBAE  CTTNE
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T T i#T
Listed investments: EiE -
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — R BT A R I 83,095 48,323
125
Unlisted equity investments e TR A 1 49,022 49,022
Club debenture o i 5 57 515 515

132,632 97,860
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24,

25.

26.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
INVESTMENTS (Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, all available-for-
sale investments were stated at fair value, except for those
unlisted equity investments and club debenture, the fair
value of which cannot be measured reliably. Fair value of
listed equity investments have been determined by reference
to quoted market prices. No impairment loss (2008:
HK$32,215,000) was recognised for the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

The unlisted equity investments represent investments in
private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are measured
at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the Directors of the Company are of the

opinion that their values cannot be measured reliably.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR
TRADING

Investments held for trading represent equity securities listed

in Hong Kong.

NET CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments

The general credit terms of the Group given to trade
customers are within 60 days. A longer credit period
may be granted to customers with long business
relationship. The Group secks to maintain strict control

over its outstanding receivables to minimize credit risk.

24,

25.

26.

A B )

R BR S BT A SR E A
T {H 51 HR > A F- (B oK BB 7T 5 M FT &
I b T A I g BT A 55 BR AL - 5%
& EHRAREZ A TETI2 7% T
2 T B (E A 1 e o MRS (E 4R (=
ZE\AF 132,215,000% 70) B R E
ZERNFE+HZH =+ — H IR E

2
Ao o

DA b JF b i AR 150 7 158 i B RE
E S B9 LA AR 3 - 5% 45 R R Ol
JAOR B9 A 825 (A5 R A 5
O3 PG w6 o K A F
Y A EEN LS U

(R T 4

FFERERNEE LT BAES -

U 1

(@) MEWCE] By Mienk ~ S0 OIR
ok B T AT KR

AEEGTHEHYEF 2 — Bl
BRI ROH A - AEE S GH T
ARMEGRARZEFRR 2
B o A 42 [ 00 0 R AT B0
A SR A Bt B 4 DL A A
Ja g -
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26. Uit By ¥ A A a0)
(@ MRS RAK ~ SO A REOIR

26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and
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prepayments (Continued)

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables, net of impairment losses, of
HK$26,638,000 (2008: HK$75,235,000) and their

aged analysis as at the end of the reporting period is as

K R B K (47)

TE WS 5 B~ L At B iR K
B TE A R TR T AL A E U’ 5 R
(R BR WA 5 48) 26,638,000
W ( FE /A 175,235,000

follows: Jt) > HR RS R 2 BRI - dran
I
The Group
AREH
2009 2008
ZRBRE S ERT)N\E
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T 7 7 T T
0 — 3 months EE=MH 17,309 60,883
4 — 6 months AN (| 7,209 4,706
7 — 12 months tLE+ZMHA 2,120 9,646
26,638 75,235

In general, the Group makes impairment for trade
receivables over one year because historical experience
is such that receivables that are past due beyond one
year are generally not recoverable. Included in the
Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$21,436,000 (2008:
HK$47,506,000) which are past due but not provided
for impairment loss. These receivables relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The average age of these receivables is 180 days (2008:
180 days).

—mE > AEBECH—FEU L
EMAKEBE NS —FL L
2 AT B A T i ] o AR AR
Bz WS 5 R R ERT
i 0 A W E R AR 1 e 18 1 A
Z MEWE 5 Wk > HIRTH(E & 3k
21,436,000 76 ( = F F /4
47,506,000%5 7T ) It %5 B U R 2K
Ty BA ALl 2 2R AL RIF 2
BLE A B o MR R B
EMEAMAGE BN EEE R K
s HA B A5 BRI B 4 T 2 B
Wi [] > 5B 2 R L 4 A AR EE R U
{H B Af o 7 4 [ 300 R A ISR 4
% 2 AT AT HE 7 &b o b 5 B AR K
B 72 B 8 25180 K ( —FEF N
4E 1 180K) o
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26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Concinucd) 26. i By ¥R A )
(a) Trade and other receivables and () HEWBCR S MRk ~ oAb RE B
prepayments (Continued) Xk B WA A I (45 )
Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not s B R A BB (B 2 B U B ) B
impaired: ZHEEM DR ¢ -
&
=
The Group &
7 5 1 )
2009 2008 (‘g
SRR CEEARE g
HKS$’000 HKS$000 E
TH#L Tl <
61 — 90 days 61%90K 13,519 47,000 E
91 — 180 days 91% 180K 6,216 54 %
181 — 365 days 181%365K 1,701 452 =
it
Total At 21,436 47,506 gj
:
=
£y
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade JE WL T B R 2 TR B A 2 g%
receivables: B g
£
The Group
AR LM
2009 2008
—EFAE  —FFNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 128
T#x Fi#or
Balance at beginning of the year FEWE R 6,521 11,665
Impairment losses recognised HLRE U 5 IR e RE 2
on trade receivables VRN 2Rt 4,753 113
Reversal of impairment losses A9 WA [0 485 755 488 [m] ol (L s 4R
on recovery of debts - (5,992)
Exchange adjustments BEE ¢, ) %% 9 735

Balance at end of the year S 57 11,283 6,521
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26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Other receivables with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,625,000 (2008: HK$2,787,000) are individually
impaired as the amount is unlikely to be recovered from

the relevant debtors.

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

on other receivables:

26. i B ¥ i ar)

(@

K B AT K (47)

S 7 B THT A {H £52,625,000%5 JG
(= FF)\AF 1 2,787,0004 C) 2
A, B 0T B AN K BT R A B A
N B > 5 EL A AR Bl I AE

HC Al T SR R 2 R SRR A 2
g

The Group
L

2009 2008

“RRE FTNFE

HK$°000 HK$000

T#7 T T

Balance at beginning of the year ) 45 B 2,787 2,494

Impairment losses recognised L E Al B S R R E R 2

on other receivables RN, Fi! - 145
Recovery of impairment loss 128 7] 33 {EL 5 18 (167) 7)
Exchange adjustments B 54, 3 48 5 155
Balance at end of the year R LR 2,625 2,787

During the year, the Group has directly written off
certain irrecoverable other receivables through the
consolidated income statement in the amount of
HK$1,559,000 (2008: HK$17,000) as a result of
compromised settlement with the relevant debtors. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

A A 1A 2 BELAH B RO 2 B T
TP MORSEE B R 4R A AR
IER: 3 € Ea A N Q= W
JRE W B 3K 401,559,000 00 (=&
ZJ\AE 117,000 70 ) © A< 48 [E]3lf
HEFE A 5% 55 R E A5 8 2 AT faT HE

=]
HA ©
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\ Wr L
26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Concinucd) 26. i Y & A )
(b) Inventories b +R]
Details of inventories are as follows: FEFBWT :
The Group
A A =
:H;-
2009 2008 g
SRRAE  EEAE g
HKS$°000 HK$°000 S
THT T g
-4
E
Raw materials JE R 6,640 5,266 g
<
Work-in-progress TE 2,440 1,152 _
Finished goods R 7,303 8,054 =
Packaging materials and accessories 14 B L I Bt 44 6,618 8,900 ;
<
B
23,001 23,372 &
HH
iy
T
(c) Trade and other payables and accruals (© MEAT BB MRRX ~ I At HE AR E
SR B 2 :
3
Included in trade and other payables and accruals TE JRE A 52 0 MRk~ JHC At I A R K g
are trade payables of HK$203,963,000 (2008: K TR 2 A LA A B 5 Rk é
HK$218,137,000) and their aged analysis as at the end 203,963,000% 7T ( ~FE J\4E
of the reporting period is as follows: 218,137,000%5 J0) » H 7 #  1
RZHREE TN T
The Group
A 130
2009 2008
ZERUE ERFNE
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T 77 T i# T
0 — 3 months THE=MHAH 7,770 183,479
4 — 6 months AN (D= 445 529
7 — 12 months txE=+ A 624 2%}
Over 1 year — 4Pk 195,124 34,096

203,963 218,137
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26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continucd) 26. Ui B R )

(c) Trade and other payables and accruals (© MWEAT BB MR ~ Hofb REAT IR
(Continued) %k&ﬁ%%m (#)

The credit period on purchases is 90 days. The Group EZEEMAIOR - AEHD
has financial risk management policies in place to 1l 7 P B T Bt P IR SR DA T R T
2 g p P
g ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe. A AT BRI A B R A0 -
=
o
E (d) Cash and bank balances d) BE& KRBT
=
=
g The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and SHAFEALEE A 2 BlE R
& short-term bank deposits at market deposit interest = A8 5% RA R B 0 A 9R AT
% rates ranging from 0.01 % to 2.25% per annum 3 HoTiT 35 4R A A F0.01%
o (2008: 0.001% to 8.63% per annum) with an original £2.25% (BT /)\F:FEF R
= P 3
§ maturity of three months or less. 0.001% %8.63% ) °
&
— Included in cash and bank balances are the following TEB G RBAITH RN A B E
> 2 N .
g amounts denominated in a currency other than the ZYie B SN BHERy
s
;—;‘ functional currency of the entities to which they relate:
3
2
é The Group
g A4
&
ﬁ 2009 2008
# ZEFBAE —FTNEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
USD EH 195,087 211,513
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. JBeA
Number of shares Amount
JBe B ¥ H k4|

2009 2008 2009 2008

“EFLE “ETNE “EFNE e YN
HK$’000 HKS$ 000 =
T Tt =
&
(=)
Ordinary shares of R B0.50¥ T L §
HK$0.50 each & 98 i é
Authorised iy fu
— Balance as at 1st January -R—HA—HZ §
o 3 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 750,000 750,000 <
— Increase during the year — 4 R 5 ;
(Note 1) (Htit1) 500,000,000 - 250,000 - &
&
— Balance as -+ ZA=+—H
at 31st December Z & 2,000,000,000  1,500,000,000 1,000,000 750,000 gg
-
Issued and fully paid CHRORCHR E
2
— Balance as at 1st January ——H—HZ&%H 1,323,509,940  1,317,419,940 661,755 658,710 &
— Exercise of share options — 47 {1 B g 2,010,000 12,240,000 1,005 6,120 §
~ Scrip dividend (Noce 2) —DARACE (fat2) 22,018,048 - 11,009 - 5

— Shares repurchased and — o B it 9 R A
cancelled (Note 3) (i it3) - (6,150,000) - (3,075)
— Balance as at 31st December —JA+=H=+—H
Z &R 1,347,537,988  1,323,509,940 673,769 661,755
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

On 5th June, 2009, the authorised ordinary share capital
of the Company was increased from HK$750,000,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the increase of 500,000,000 ordinary

W ERAAENA LA > AL TSR
J11500,000,000 % 5 % i {50.50%5 76 2
I > 1 8 AR 1 750,000,000

= shares of HK$0.50 each. #E T6H %1,000,000,000% IC
8
i 2. On 15¢h July, 2009, 22,018,048 new shares of the Company were WZEFEIELA A H > RN m
é allotted and issued at HK$2.572 per share to the shareholders FELUBRAC B IR - sl 2 =T\ 4
F;‘ who elected to receive shares in lieu of cash for the final dividend TZHET—HEEZRKBRE - 8
é. for the year ended 31st December, 2008. These shares rank pari JBe2.572 JC e 3% K ¥ 1722,018,048/1%
& passu in all respects with the shares then in issue. AN TR o 5% 5 Iy B R 84T
= B M 0 52 4 [ 65 2
i
E 3. For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Company BE_FFNFL A=t —HIEHF
§ repurchased a total of 6,150,000 of its own shares on the Stock BE o AR 2 Al LA 1. 1998 T8 2,951
‘!_(»1‘ Exchange at a price of HK$1.19 to HK$2.95 per share, for a total T 1A B A TR T 52 P 8 [ 36,150,000/
— consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$9,073,000. A T B A - BB AR AR OR R PR ST 29 2
z The repurchased shares were cancelled and an amount equivalent 9,073,000 JC » M [a] 9 % 3 B 5F 54 > A
E to the nominal value of these shares of HK$3,075,000 was T % S R A7 5T (B 22.3,075,0009 7T
% transferred from share capital to the capital redemption reserve. {9 5 IE L A8 e A A A T £k
E The consideration paid on the repurchased shares was charged B A i [ JB £y 2 A8 8 £ B i A 4
é against the retained earnings. B o
o
.ﬂ
g
= Number of
# ordinary Price per share Aggregate
shares of 5 B 1 consideration
Date of purchase WA H HK$0.50 each Highest Lowest paid
#0509 T2
- 2 B B A B R =45 RE B A AUE
HKS$ HKS$ HK$°000
133 T T T TE
January 2008 ZETNFE—H 758,000 2.95 2.45 2,035
July 2008 SRR NFELH 414,000 1.95 1.93 806
October 2008 —EEZNFE+A 4,978,000 1.30 1.19 6,232
6,150,000 9,073
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. JEHEI AT 5

TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the
“Scheme”). The Scheme was set up for the primary purpose
to provide incentives or rewards to selected persons for their
contribution to the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), the
Scheme shall be valid and effective till 28th May, 2012. After
the expiry of such valid period, no further options will be
offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions of

the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i)
any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii)
any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or (iv)
any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

AAFMRBFE-FFZ_HFAH_TILH
A Y R R R AN — TE R RE T
(THEREAERT B ) o 5% o7 W e 1 1)
FEHMR G EE 2 N L AL
9] 5 A 42 ) 457 A AT AT R HE 22 A o] 1 A
(TAT B G HeME | ) 2 B Rk 1 s 158 =k 2%
- EXLEN/NCIRN & Tl S N )
BALEARNFER R ([EE)H]) I 8%
PR AR RZ R > B R RE T B AL
FoF—-"HFAHA T NHIE-RE
RO i T A8 N P AT 4 O T
FGEARE - b U SR L ) 4 AR R 45 T
SN A 5 4 T A 5K o

AR B2 0 e St o - SR R AT 1 DA R A
1 IR () A SR AT TR R 2
R BAT AT BT 15 B A 2 AT A B B
8 B (A 2T s e e ) - B 935 A 42 [
AEAT 8B 2> B ST ] 7 45 1 2 A
o 4T 2 5 B G A SR AR AT R B A
A BT o] BT 15 B A 2 AT AT JE BUAT
F(UHEBLIEATES) G
] 2 3EF 5 3B A 4R AR o R 2
N~ B B R A B B AT AR 2
R AT ] BT 45 B M A R {1k ] ) IR B
Z MERET 5 B (iv) A 5 B AT B A F
AT fo] BT 43 M 2 AT T R > AR
A5 FAT AT 8 B 2 R SO ] T 45 A A
BATEATRE I AR MR A A
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. JBRE XA R 5 (a0)
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TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 108,474,911 shares, being 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Scheme, unless shareholders’ approval of
the Company has been obtained. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each participant
or grantee (including exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). Any further grant of
options in excess of the Individual Limit must be subject
to shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such

participant and his or her associates abstaining from voting.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the
grant thereof. An option may be exercised at any time during
a period as the Board may determine which shall not be
more than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of
option. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the
offer of the relevant options, there is no minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised
under the Scheme. The subscription price per share of the
Company in respect of any option granted under the Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price will not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer of the option, which must be a business day; (ii)
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the shares on the date of offer.

W I A N m) R OR 2 it o > AR BRI
J RE & 1) T 42 2 RORE O B AT 2
AN w1 Ay e e R A AR BOAS ]
108,474,911 % > B A< 24 &) i % ) ik
MeRERT B H 2 B8 AT B AR B
10% ° f§: 44 2 B3 SR NTEB 217 H
W I H R AR AT+ 8 A A SR E
BT 2 B R (B S B AT KR
) T AT Re I 3547 RS 34T 2
AN F) A B RS R R R
WEH HZAAFRC T RMEHEZ1%
(TR ERR ) o A1) 2 B35 PR AT 4% 1
je 7 {1 Pl b PR 2 B s > R ZE AR R R
FE % HOR & b At > i A B 2 B K&
HBBALWEE S LR ERE-

RN AR I B 2 BB FH28 H
A1 B A A 5 S ) A Y ] S AT
1k T - A5 2 JE 4% S B e 2 ACAE > ek
TEf A T AR 8] o Ji s M vl 7 2 2 ) e
SE F) 1 [ 70 o R AT o5 % 0 PR RS 7%
F 45 T PR HEE )00 R R AR o AR
5% 0 M ) > BREE R 0 A R E K
AR AR A el W FHEE 452 L I P AL S 3 4 >
Slf7 48 5% A 1 e HEAT (o 2 i A LR AT Y
F J6 R S o AR 5 O S MR T ) P 45 4 1Y
AT Ao S BEARE T 5 > A 2 ] A B Y
R I B % o o R A M R O M % AR
HEEAHERUT =F 2 REEOFK
I BREE B (b H BB ) TERR A2
Jiv 5 R A 2 P 3 e A 22 Wi A (i)
R B FBOHE T A R 7 3 H TR
g 5 i A A 2R B 91 BB Ay 2 P 20k
T 5 B i) A 13 M A M 1 ) B4y
T .



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 05 0 0 M ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Under the Scheme, 45,250,000 shares of the Company
were issued upon exercise of share options in 2003, 2005,
2008 and 2009. Therefore, the maximum number of
shares available for issue under the Scheme is 63,224,911,
representing approximately 4.69% of the Company’s existing

issued share capital at the end of the reporting period.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

28. JRBESAT R S ()

R 5% H I HRE B AR % 7]45,250,000/8
M BT = BT
T AR Jo — T JUAEAT 0 15 I HE 4%
BEAT o PRI o AR R RE ) W] iR
AT By B H e 2 7963,224,911 18 > B
AN RS R BLA C 8T IR A
4.69% °

TR R A E R B AR

share options held by Directors and employees during the Fr A0 I HE 2 ) -
year.
Outstanding at Outstanding at
Exercise 1st January Exercised ~ 31st December
price 2009 during 2009 2009
REZFIAE g S
—H—H ZRFAE FZAZT—B
Date of grant ®BHW A7 B 8 i AR AT B i g AR AT B
HK$
#
24th July, 2006 ZEENE
tH=+mHA
~ Directors —#H% 2.155 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
— Employees —{E & 2.155 8,060,000 (2,010,000) 6,050,000
13th November, 2007 %% L4
t+—H+=0
— Directors —#H 3.644 27,300,000 - 27,300,000
39,360,000 (2,010,000) 37,350,000

Exercisable at the end A i A AR AT il

of the year

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is

HK$2.251.

37,350,000

B A AT 2 B A I S R AT
5 H A 22 0 R - 35 A 52,2516 € -
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28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. IeRESCAT B 5y (40)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TR EEA N EE AR BT AR
share options held by Directors and employees during prior JE A B B IR RE 2 )
year.
o
2 Outstanding at Outstanding at
; Exercise Ist January Exercised ~ 31st December
g price 2008 during 2008 2008
£ RZFF)N\E R_FFNE
: ~A—H R-FBRAF +AZ+—H
S Date of grant i H FrEfE I R AT i i ff ) AR AT
& HKS$
: #7
b
»
&l 6th October, 2005 “EEHE+LANH
- — Directors —#H 1.810 11,000,000 (11,000,000) -
“; 24th July, 2006 ZERERNF
3 tAZ+mImA
é — Directors —#H 2.155 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
S — Employees —fE& 2.155 9,300,000 (1,240,000) 8,060,000
&
g
g 13th November, 2007 TERE LA
t+—HA+=H
- Directors —EH 3.644 14,300,000 - 14,300,000
— Employee/Director —EE/#EF
(Note) (Htit) 3.644 13,000,000 - 13,000,000
137 51,600,000 (12,240,000) 39,360,000

Exercisable at the end ] AE AR AT

of the year 39,360,000
In respect of the share options exercised during the year MER —FF/NE+_H=+—HIE
ended 31st December, 2008, the weighted average share price SEEATH Z BEIRHE 5 > #HE LR B
at the dates of exercise were HK$2.577 & HKS$2.734 for T8 B A 2 I RS- X A 7 3l 2577
Director and employees respectively. T J22.734% 5T
Note: The employee was appointed as director of the Company in MiaE - AR B —FFENE A BRI AA

DA

October 2008. F)EH o
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29. LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 29. W8T

The Group
A4
2009 2008
e 2 5/ S YA
HKS$’°000 HK$°000 B
T Tt =
&
(=)
Bank loans, secured PRAT B AR 330,569 385,618 g
Less: Amount repayable within one year 78 - 51| A Jii 8 £ 15 » é
included in current liabilities JH A — A TR B 25 7Y A (11,360) (192,809) fu
319,209 192,809 <
Carrying amount repayable: SRR R 2 R TH (H g
Within one year —4ER 11,360 192,809 %
More than one year, but not exceeding —4E DL AH S R R i AR E
two years 68,159 11,342 %
More than two years but not more than 4T DL b H RS 3 AR .
five years 251,050 181,467 E
B
330,569 385,618 S
:
The bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as A 4 [ AR SR AT Bk KT 2 A é
disclosed in Note 35. FE35H 4 5%
Included in bank loans were floating-rate borrowings RAT B R B B A R E K
of HK$330,569,000 (2008: HK$204,151,000) which 330,569,000«%75 —EFENE:
carried interest rates ranging from 5.31% to 5.76% per 204,151, 0007%75 AR E A F5.31%
annum (2008: 6.147% to 7.74% per annum). There was F5.76% ( . EFE)NAE  EF 26.147% 138
no fixed rate borrowing as at 31st December, 2009 (2008: B7.74% ) ° JJL/‘\ “EENLE+ A
HK$181,467,000 which carried interest rates at 5.9% per e el = ) 2 [ =
annum). FEJVAE 1 181,467,0004E 76 » 4F Fl| R A

5.9%) °
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30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. 3E %t PLIHE

Accelerated Exchange
Tax  Revaluation difference Tax
depreciation  of properties LAT  recognition losses Others Total
i ek +3 IS H
BE% LB WER {1 BB 8 it
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
I~ T# T# T#r Fi#x F#x T#ri T#
B
8
o The Group KM
(=]
< Balance as at RN
g Ist January, 2008 idiba 1 (35316 (920,113) - (44,887) - 10,553 (989,763)
3 (Charge) credit to consolidated AR E & A ER
= income statement for the year (430 B B (2,667) (4,384) - = 14,967 (2,481) 5,435
§ Exchange adjustments [ 5. % (2,440) (1,199) - (2,790) = 136 (6,293)
=
= Balance as at RN
g 31st December, 2008 +-A=+—H
> Ve s (40,423) (925,696) - (47,677) 14,967 8,208 (990,621)
& (Charge) credit to consolidated WAEELGAFEE
= income statement for the year (4190 48 [ (4,451)  (1,184,454) 178,141 - (14,992) 71 (1,025,827)
__ﬁ? Exchange adjustments [ 53R % (71) (32) - (77) 25 1 (154)
=]
=
m; Balance as at BREZENAE
'§ 31st December, 2009 +=A=+—H
! P4 (44945)  (2,110,182) 178,141 (47,754) = 8,138 (2,016,602)
[\*]
S
S
_\; For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial RGBSR RS > & TIELE
& position presentation, certain deferred tax assets and BMEEEMABC THRH-UT A E
g liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of B T Bk 765 i 3% B AR A YL &5 R 0 AT
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:
2009 2008
“RBAE TEAF
HKS$’°000 HKS$000
T#x T # T
Deferred tax assets A SIE Bl JA & 2,090 873
Deferred tax liabilities 0 S B TH B AR (2,018,692) (991,494)
(2,016,602) (990,621)

AR BATR > A S 18] AT AR 8 R AR i
Fl 2z 7 By F Bl 6 5 18 £5445,200,0009%5
g6 ( ZEZE )\ 1 571,800,000%5 70) °
R_ERZNFET_HA=Z+—H B
I 2 Y ) AR VR B D TR > I e AR
IE 5 TH e 15 A 58 2 AR A B JH A R o A
TEERNF S AEFECHZEEER T
159,870,000 JT fifé 58 1 AiE A TEUE 7€ o

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses of HK$445.2 million (2008: HK$571.8 million)
available for offset against future profits. As 31st December,
2009, no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the such losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. In 2008, a deferred tax asset had been recognised in
respect of HK$59.87 million of such losses.
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Under the New Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1st January, 2008 onwards. At the end of
the reporting period, the aggregate amount of distributable
earnings of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries in respect of which
the Group has not provided for dividend withholding tax
amounted to approximately HK$1,547.54 million (2008:
HK$622.50 million)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2000, Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. (the
“Hotel Company”), a jointly controlled entity in which
the Group has a 50% interest, entered into a management
agreement for 20 years (the “Management Period”) with
Inter-Continental Hotels Corporation (the “Management
Company”). The Management Company agreed to pay not
exceeding US$6 million to the Hotel Company for hotel
renovation and system upgrading (the “Renovation Fund”).
During the Management Period, the Management Company
will receive a certain amount of management fee based on

income and profit of the Hotel Company.

The Group is a guarantor to indemnify the Management
Company up to 50% of the Renovation Fund paid, but not
exceeding US$3 million if the management agreement is
terminated by the Hotel Company within the Management
Period. At the end of the reporting period, the Renovation
Fund paid by the Management Company amounted to
US$6 million (2008: US$6 million). As the Management
Company is a world-class hotel management group and the
operating results of the Hotel Company has improved, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Hotel Company would
be unlikely to terminate the management agreement within
the Management Period. Accordingly, it would be unlikely
for the Group to suffer any material financial loss as a result

of giving the indemnity.

FAEF A=t —HIEEE

30.

31.

SERE B ()

R 48 7 Bk > b B BB S\ =&
TN — H — H AL Py & IR 1
L ZE B0 TR B o A R 45 A OR AR 4R
S o /N Pl I T A
#11,547,540,000% 70 ( =& F )\ 4
622,500,000%5 7T ) » 4= 5 [H 3 AR A I
B w4 o
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. 7S
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the AR A EE 2 FEEAR LA
following material capital and other commitments: M ARPET
2009 2008
~ ZEFAE —FFTNEF
2 HK$’000 HKS$ 000
(=] — 5 —
2 T#x T T
3
[
= Capital commitments A TR I
g
;; Commitments in relation to expenditure A B 5§ i€ v ¥ 36 30 3 2 & ¥ -
g on properties under development:
=
g Contracted but not provided for C wJ A R 4546 431,682 145,089
S
al
_ Other commitments I b 7R 95
2
g Operating lease arrangements KEMELH
=
3 i) The Group as lessee i) AHEEERRRBA
¥
<
= At the end of the reporting period, T 5 IR > AR B T
g the Group had outstanding PHREME AELEA
g commitments under non- AT B4R R B 2 R
cancellable operating leases %
which fall due:
— within one year ——FR 10,040 6,549
— in the second to fifth year — o AR R AR
141 inclusive (LA & R i AF) 8,022 15,186
— over five years —HAELL kB 4,171 4,627
22,233 26,362
Operating lease payments represent rentals and annual fees K82 FH B 2IE T 48 A 4 [l H A T
for use of land payable by the Group for certain of its office NEL/E Y5 ok R P S & Y
properties and land. The significant operating leases for W HEAS WY E T EERE
rental of properties are negotiated for an average term of HETHEE R ZF B4 A L
three years. The operating leases for annual fees for use of 5 REAR 4 2 R FH B & B AR
land are based on lease terms of the land which are over five - b FH A o

years.
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32. COMMITMENTS (Concinued) 32. 7RYE )

ii) The Group as lessor

The properties held have committed tenants from the

majority of two years up to the maximum of nine years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

contracted with tenants for the following future

i) AR PR ALA

JI R 26 2 RN 22 KGR R
ZRHWAE > R/ ILEF -

T et AR - AR 8 A 4R T LR
NPT aT & %) > AR A A ZE R T 5145

minimum lease payments which fall due: BT NVN 5o Nl - i R R
2009 2008
ZRBIAE EE N
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T #C T T
— within one year ——4R 61,839 52,595

— in the second to fifth year — B _ERERE

inclusive (B ERWA) 34,283 41,158
— over five years — AR 7,072 12,729
103,194 106,482

33. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 33.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at the specified

rate under the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to
the consolidated income statement represent contributions
paid and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified

in the rules of the scheme.
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AL ZFFFE T ARE G
i 28 A S R A 1) 2 B — T R
AR S ([BFHE]) 58 - e
Bl EEEARER L EEDSHTA

7 LA FE 7 Kl — 57 RE N
AR5 R B < R BRI R E 2 A B 3
A BAT G #ET B A9 AR ke

TP e M) TR R A B 2 A R A < B
A 2 BT i A S I 3 A BT
Z RO RN FEE M3k

¥
&
2
&
(2
=)
=
(|
g
=]
oy
U
=
=
-]
=]
(-]
<

g
&
=
<
&
HH
o
ba-]
3
E
—
(="
=
9
&
(=]
c
e
=

142




5
g
=]
=]
2
=]
=
o~
&
g
g
S
53¢
B
=
2
=
»
3y

4y 600C 110doy renuuy |

&
i

143

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B W05 0 0 Wi ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

33.

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-
managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes
operated by the local government. The employer and the
employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain
percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties:

(a) In 2005, the Company had entered into an agreement
covering the period from 1st September, 2005 upto
31st August, 2008, with Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company agreed to
provide administrative services and office premises to
RHL and its subsidiaries, in return, RHL is required to
share an attributable portion of the administrative cost
of the Company, for a monthly fee of HK$150,000.
The agreement was superseded by a new agreement
dated 30th June, 2008 with revised administrative cost
of HK$230,000 per month for the period from 30th
June, 2008 to 31st July, 2011. During the year ended
31st December, 2009, the administrative cost of the
Company shared by RHL amounted to HK$2,760,000
(2008: HK$2,283,000). As at 31st December, 2009
and 31st December, 2008, no outstanding balance was
owed by RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction but is exempted from disclosure

and approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

33.

34.

S8R At B )

Hh B B T 5 R R R k2
K R E OB R A EE # 2
B o AREERT R A - KR B A K
R & 2 & T 1 2 A il e A
5 B R IR KR A G B 2 AE A AL A
A AT B K o

IR 7N -1 B R 05 38 5

FERN S AR HEBEAN AL NS

(@ MZFEHAE AN A EAN A
Z ) e 4 R R A A
(TJIET 1) §T S 2 —FR HAR L
A—HBZ2=FFZNFNH=Z1+—
HZREZ - BIREEE AL
A [F) B AT BB K R T
T VAT B f T8 2 =) - i e 6
Gy YE AN T ER O HEAG AT B
£ H 150,000 0 - ZFE B EH H
Mpy _FENFERNA=THZ
R A T A AT B BT
£ H230,000 00 > F I —F
FZNEASAH=ZTHE -F——
ELA=Z+—HIE -HE_FTF
WEF+ZA=Z+—HILFE )
) 3 W8 AR S | 2 AT B AR AR
£52,760,000% 76 ( —FF )\ 4 :
2,283,000 0) it —FF JLE
+o A=+t HEFENFE
+ A =+—H I Wi 4 KA
AN FAT AT A AE AR A 8% o

A& 52 5 1 A A B T 52 o
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34. CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

On 3rd October, 2001, Tomson Golf (Shanghai)
Limited (“Tomson Golf’) and Shanghai Tomson Real
Estate Investment & Development Co., Ltd. (“Tomson
Real Estate”), wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company, entered into an agreement with Shanghai
Pudong Land Development (Holding) Corp. (“SPLD”),
a substantial shareholder of Shanghai Tomson Pudong
Real Estate Development Co., Limited (“Tomson
Pudong Real Estate”) which is an indirect 70% owned
subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the agreement,
Tomson Golf and Tomson Real Estate agreed to acquire
from SPLD at a total consideration of US$130 million
for land use right of a site area of approximately
1,480,000 square meters. The agreement was approved
by the shareholders in an extraordinary general meeting

of the Company held on 27th November, 2001.

The parties to the agreement and Tomson Pudong
Real Estate further entered into a conditional
supplemental agreement on 17th April, 2009 to revise
the total consideration and the site area to RMB2,200
million (equivalent to approximately HK$2,496.12
million) and approximately 1,020,000 square meters
respectively. An announcement dated 27th April, 2009
in respect of the supplemental agreement was made by
the Company accordingly. Details of the transaction
were disclosed in a circular to shareholders dated 18th
May, 2009. The supplemental agreement was approved
by the shareholders in an extraordinary general meeting

of the Company held on 5th June, 2009.

SPLD was a connected person to the Company and the
transaction also constituted a connected transaction for

the Company under the Listing Rules.

34. BH LN - e B 05 32 B

(4

(b)

WN_EE—HETH=ZH AN
ZEEMB ARG ERBER (L
B)ERAR (MGERmmR]) &
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FE BT SL — 10 A v 1 AR T Ak
N A AR AE K 3 T A A BB ET
£ N R %2,200,000,0007C (4
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34. CONNECTED AND RELATED 34. BN 1 2% BH 28 05 32 B

PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (78
(c) Compensation of key management personnel © WHBFUMAHZHE
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as HERZERFHMMT

o follows:
e
]
o 2009 2008
E “RBAE  TTAE
2 HKS$°000 HKS$°000
; T Tl
§
& Short-term benefits 351 1914 13,434 12,931
E Post-employment benefits 1@ F 4% A Al 36 27
b
S
a 13,470 12,958
> . e . .
g The remuneration of Directors is determined by the HREHMIhMHFMERETRE SRR
;i remuneration committee or the Board (or under the (BURBEA L B ROR 2 A > L% DL
é: authorisation of the sharcholders of the Company as the JE ) 7% T 35 B K~ 8 A 22 B
é case may be) by reference to market terms, individual TN R B E o
S responsibilities and performance.
=
g The balances due from associates and a jointly controlled W8 0N B e A SE TR U R 2 I

entity at the end of the reporting period are set out in Notes i &5 B E 20 Al S B 5E22 &% 23 -

22 and 23, respectively.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with bl AZ Ty AR 4R AR 4R ] B A B N

terms mutually agreed between the Group and the respective 7 7] B 2 MOEAT -

145 related parties.
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35.

36.

N
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. ¥ Z KA
At 31st December, 2009, certain investment properties MRE-FFRET_H=+—H k@
with carrying value of HK$643,190,000 (2008: {H £643,190,000% 76 ( & & )\ 4 :
HK$572,683,000), leaschold land and buildings with 572,683,000% 7C) 2 & T & W 2 I
carrying value of HK$63,646,000 (2008: HK$65,068,000) H T £463,646,0004 7T ( & F N\
and properties held for sale with carrying value of 4E 1 65,068,000% 0 ) 2 TH B 1 J2 4
HK$29,701,000 (2008: Nil) were pledged to banks to secure F UL M R T E £529,701,0004 06 ( —F
bank loans of HK$330,569,000 (2008: HK$204,151,000). TN - M) Z KRS 2 W36 KA
TAR1T - 1E£5330,569,000% 70 ( —FF
JNAE £ 204,151,000% 70) Z SR1T B Z
Wk
In addition, certain properties under development with o s R_FFENE+_H=+—H>
carrying value of HK$249,549,000 were pledged to banks HE T {H £5249,549,000%% G 2 25 T 2% J&
to secure bank loans of HK$181,467,000 at 31st December, W) 2 E KPR T SR 4T 4 55 181,467,000
2008. B MITERZIER -
FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF 36. A2 w) 2 W B R
THE COMPANY
The financial information of the Company as at 31st MR-FRERFET_A=Z+T—H &L
December, 2009 is as follows: A Z B ERR
2009 2008
e 25/ S— AN
Notes HKS$’000 HK$000
Bt 7 T# F i C
Total assets G 4,223,235 4,248,136
Total liabilities Mmafg (846,009) (989,718)
Total assets and liabilities ¥ i B £ (i AR 3,377,226 3,258,418
Equity B 2
Share capital A 27 673,769 661,755
Reserves ekt 46 37 2,703,457 2,596,663
3,377,226 3,258,418
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37. COMPANY’S RESERVES 37. 7% 2 Wl filt i
Capital Share
Share  redemption option  Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
wA Jik e
Bedrdt A Wi MARE KRN wit

HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HKS$000
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x

THE COMPANY AR

Balance at Ist January, 2008 & =& % Ui

&
g
e
3
@
e
=
o
=
B.
a
A
§
e
i
=
2
=
»>
&l

— A —H 2z 4t 1,940,007 10,983 39,827 327,645 162,646 2,481,108
Profit for the year AF B i A - - - - 177,879 177,879
Premium on repurchase of 7 I it 3 ik
shares - 3,075 - - (9,101) (6,026)
Exercise of share options 716 R i A 16,462 - - - - 16,462
Transfer upon exercise of T A 0 i 1 A
share options 4,312 = (4,312) = = =
- Dividend paid for 2007 kAt =FFLERE - - - - (72,760) (72,760)
>
E Balance at Ist January, 2009 = FJLAE
2 — ] —Hz 4t 1,960,781 14,058 35,515 327,645 258,664 2,596,663
E Profit for the year AF B i - - - - 130,639 130,639
S Exercise of Share options 17 f B It 1 3,327 = = = = 3,327
'é Transfer upon exercise of TR A0 P 7 £
o share options 1,124 = (1,124) = = =
i Issue of shares under scrip AR AR AR S 5T 1
ﬁ dividend scheme BT Ay 45,621 = = = = 45,621
# Dividend paid for 2008 A = EFNERE - - - - (72,793) (72,793)

Balance at 31st December, B ~FF L4
2009 +ZAZ+—H
Pa 2,010,853 14,058 34,391 327,645 316,510 2,703,457
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 38. LEM)E A - BB A F K
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY REAE
CONTROLLED ENTITY
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, R _ZZhLET_H=1+—H
2009 Z ERHE A ¥
=
Proportion of &
Paid up issued issued share capital/ 3
Place of ordinary effective interest in 2
incorporation shate capital/ registered capital <
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities g
BMRCHLT ARdHHZ &
IR iR/ B iR/
W A ol £ RERWE il B A CANEN ] T SR =1 g
Directly  Indirectly —
A W& ®
% % =
g
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 - Investment holding ®
i I Seil UEST REHER =
Cosmos Success Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding —é
B B Eik 10,000 7 I 3
o
Dafeng Property Management PRC US$500,000 - 100 Property management 5
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note (1)) g
RUEY ST (E¥g) ARA R il 500,000% 7t WEER g
(Wt (1) -
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
tE g A A ik 27T HEAER
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Investment holding
FHARAF ik 10,0007 7¢ BEHR
_— | 148
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
WEA R ik 2ET HE R
Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Hong Kong HK$200 - 100 Securities trading
Houses) Limited
Eik 2008 w5 HH
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Property holding
B R ik 27 WERH
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100 Inactive

REARAHE ik 17T B
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 38. LEM)E A - BB A F K&
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY ABAEE W
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, R _ZZhLET_H=1+—H
2009 (Continued) 25]3%““%\/‘\\7?] (45)
g
B Proportion of
5 Paid up issued issued share capital/
? Place of ordinary effective interest in
'i incorporation shate capital/ registered capital
g Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
g BMRCHLT ARAHHZ
8 b o Wk CHATRA
% W8 A ol £ KBRS il ¥ A A AR R LR
= Directly  Indirectly
2 fifk I
> % %
al
> Jentime Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Providing property services
E to the Group
= REARAA ik 2T RAER R %R
=]
=]
é Kuto Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
S W38 A PR A 7 HiE 2ETC RE B
&
ﬁ Leway Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Inactive
# HER R ik 2T L
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
H A R i 2T BB
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands ~ US$40,200,000 - 100 Investment holding
149 HRIE LB 40,200,003 & LR
Owina Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
Bk A RA ik 2T BB AR
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real PRC US$18,500,000 - 95 Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd.
(Note (2))
HEGEERFEHEREARARD  H 18,500,000% 7 UES
(Wit (2)
Shanghai Tomson Outer Gaogiao PRC US§$15,000,000 - 100 Property development
Development Co., Ltd. (Noze (1))
i B AN R R A PR ) ik 15,000,000% 70 UES

(Haa)
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 38. LEM)E A - BB A F K&
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY ABAEE W
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, R _ZZhLET_H=1+—H
2009 (Continued) 21%%}%\/&5‘] (45)
=
Proportion of &
Paid up issued issued share capital/ 3
Place of ordinary effective interest in 2
incorporation shate capital/ registered capital <
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities é
BMRCHLT ARAHHZ &
A WHRA/ RHATRA/ E
W8 A ol £ KBRS ik ¥ A A AR R LR g
Directly  Indirectly —
Hik I 4% ®
% % e
g
Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry PRC US$9,580,000 - 58  Manufacturing of PVC #
Co., Ltd. (Note (2) pipes %:é
FiGEBBEEARA Gl 9,580,000 7T RiEBE 3
(W3(2) g
=
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate ~ PRC US$46,000,000 - 70 Property development g
Development Co., Ltd. (Note (2) (i
LEGERAFREREGRAD  HH 46,000,005 & (UEZ 2
(Wit 2) S
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate PRC US$100,000,000 = 100 Property development
Investment & Development
Co., Ltd. (Noze (1))
LR A IR A il 100,000,0003 & UEZ
(Wit 1) 1 50
Toben Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment
BAERAF Tk 2T BE T
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Investment holding
Bl () £ BR8] ik 2T BB AR
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
YRR LS 1€ R
Tomson Empire View Co. Limited British Virgin Islands ~ US$65,010,000 - 100 Investment holding
Y B A SR I PR 7] REE LTS 65,010,000% 7 LR
Tomson Financial Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding

GRS EHRAF &k 10,0008 7 BB R
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 38. LEM)E A - BB A F K&
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY ABAEE W
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, R _ZZhLET_H=1+—H

2009 (Continued) 21%%}%\/&5‘] (45)

gl Proportion of
§ Paid up issued issued share capital/
g’ Place of ordinary effective interest in
S incorporation share capital/ registered capital
E Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
= T L AR L
- IR Rk LRI
m W A 5 4 RERWE i it ¥ A AN LN ] ILE SR =
g Directly  Indirectly
2 Hi 1A £
?; % %
al
: Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited PRC US$40,000,000 = 100 Golf course and club
E (Note (1)) operation, and property
’; development
3 GEFEEL (L) ARAR i 40,000,000% 7 LRSS V3 Uh Y &
3 (Wit BRI
(=
s Tomson Group Gatland (Shanghai) PRC US$16,000,000 - 100 Property development
% Housing & Estate Ltd. (Noze (1)
- Gl EMEL (L) FE il 16,000,0003 1T VES U
HRAR (W)

Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee services
to the Group and
investment holding

BrEEE (REAN)ARA ik 20/ 70 RS

151 WS AL e

Tomson Group (Nominees) Hong Kong HK$20 - 100 Providing nominee services

No. 2 Limited to its fellow subsidiaries

GREESE - (RENARRE &k 209 7 Falr) 2 I 25 W 48 A
AR

Tomson Haijing Garden (Shanghai PRC US$58,200,000 = 100 Property development

Pudong New Area) Co., Lid.
(Note (1))
GERIER (LR il 58,200,000% 7 UEZ
HIRAH (Bt (1)
Tomson International Entertainment Hong Kong HKS$2 - 100 Securities trading and
Co. Ltd. investment holding

kR A R A R ik 2T w5 B Rt
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38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 38. BRWBA A - BEAF K&
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY ABAEE W
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)
Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December, R _ZZhLET_H=1+—H
2009 (Continued) 21%%}%\/&5‘] (45)
=
Proportion of &
Paid up issued issued share capital/ 3
Place of ordinary effective interest in 2
incorporation shate capital/ registered capital <
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities é
B CBAT ARTARHZ &
A WHRA/ RHATRA/ E
W 2 i 4 1 R kI B A AW AR R RERH g
Directly  Indirectly —
Hi% I ®
% % e
=
Tomson International Trade Building PRC US$16,800,000 - 100 Property development &«
(Shanghai) Co., Led. (Nore (1) =
Vb B R (L) AR A il 16,800,000% 70 UES <
(Wit (1) g
=
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 - Investment holding g
Uik A R i 31T BB B C’;
=]
TPR Secretarial Services Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Providing secretarial E
services and investment
holding
ik 10,0009 7 B AR S MR J B A
Walsland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding
EZRARAF ik 10,0001 ¢ BRI
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding 1 52
JROCH AR ik 2B BB B
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding 2 B JB8 2 w1 A 4 45 H AR TR AT o] 1R ]
at the end of the year, or at any time during the year. M AT ] 1) R 0 0 2 BB 8 5 o
Note: For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their classification o N YA S /N IR = 1 e
of establishment is as follows: 2R
(1)  wholly foreign owned enterprise (1) PR BT

(2)  sino-foreign equity joint venture (2) AN G A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B V5 8 % B ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFETH = —HIEFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2009

38. LEMBA A - BB A d K

HEBEE )

REEZAAEZA=+—H
Z EEBEE A

Paid up Proportion of
issued issued share capital/
Form of Place of ordinary effective interest in
business incorporation shate capital/ registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital held by the Company ~ Principal activities
MROEL ARAHZ
131 WA 1294 A/
B A il 4 1 EHHEREA  REBAN ik ¥ A AN A R R R
Directly  Indirectly
A W %
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$45,000 - 26.7  Investment holding
BENARR A kM 3L ik 45,0007 7T BE B
Yankie Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HKS$2 - 50 Investment holding
BBEA R~ ok AL i 2T B
LT & Partners Inc. Incorporated British Virgin US$9,000,000 = 33 Investment holding
Islands
sk A RIBIE TG 9,000,000 7& RALER
China Boom Enterprises ~ Incorporated British Virgin US$1,280,000 - 44 Investment holding
Limited Islands
BEREARAA st A SR I L B 1,280,005 & REER
Tomson Entertainment Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 - 45 Investment in film,
Co. Limited television and
entertainment
businesses
GEGERHERAR MR =k 25,000,004 5 HERY THE
3

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries and associates would be of
excessive length and therefore the above list contains only
the particulars of those subsidiaries and associates which

significantly affect the results or assets of the Group.

R ST B P A I e 4 )
BArRZEREEIREBRITE

b RAE B 5% S SR S A A
T I K B 2 IR VR s ) R M
A2 B R
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B VA 5 8 % B ik

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 BEZEEZNFE T H = —HIEFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

38. LEMB A - BiE A K

Jointly controlled entity as at 31st December, R _EZET+_HAH=Z+—H
2009 Z B3R
Percentage
of effective
Form of Place of interest in
Name of jointly business incorporation Paid up registered capital
controlled entity structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
L) WA MRz AR AR A Z M
ARERAR EHHREX KRS il ¥ A YA T A 2 R FEEH
Directly  Indirectly
Hi% W %
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang - Sino-foreign PRC US5$24,340,000 - 50 Hotel owning and
Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. equity joint operation
venture
B 0 K AR ERE  TH 24,340,000 7T BEA LA

AR

39. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group has

the following major non-cash transaction:

(a) 22,018,048 new shares were issued as scrip dividend for

the year ended 31st December, 2008 as set out in Notes

15 and 27.

(b) Certain investment properties of the Group with fair
values of HK$2,251,840,000 at dates of transfer were

transferred to properties held for sale during the year

set out in Note 17.

39. BEIEBL &Y

WRE-FEAFT A= AL
LIRS PES £3 EET T

T

(a) 4ENE #4722,018,048 % 8T I AL
BHEZZN\FE+_HA=+—
H E4E 2 B4 i S (A B 5

15K%27) »

(b) AFEN - AL HE A T HE Y R
ABHEYE RBAEHAT
8 £52,251,840,000%% 7T ( # #7 Bt

FE17) ©
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Other Connected Transactions

JC b B 2 22 %)

In the ordinary course of business, current accounts have been
maintained between companies in the Group. At the end of the
reporting period, the particulars and the aggregate balances of the
current accounts due (from) by the following non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company to the remaining members of the

Group were as follows:

15 H W EBRAE > A B 2528 m W IR 80
RIS « R s AR THALFZ IR
B S AR AT (RE W) A 46 B L BR A E 2
R Z AR IR 2 wE 1% R 45 8RS0 T

Percentage shareholdings

Name of subsidiary attributable to the Group 2009 2008
W& A vl £ R A 45 A B Ry B ZRBHAE RN
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T# T
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real Estate 95% (210) 2,058
Development Co., Ltd.
¥ 5 B HE YR S R B R A R H
Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry Co., Ltd. 58% 13 35
FEGEEBEEARAA
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real Estate 70% (525) (74)

Development Co., Ltd.
b 5 B R M E B B A R A WD

These current accounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed repayment terms.

Details of the connected transactions are set out in Note 34 to

these consolidated financial statements.

% SRR P T IS A~ G S B ol S AR
K -

R Sl 50 5 IV O A B 5 B R MY R34



Schedule of Principal Properties
ERYER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y
As at 31st December, 2009 * —EFZJU4FE T —H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

AR FA 2P

Investment Properties BEYIE
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest =
T 20 A X o
Wk b Bt 4 5% AL mE CEk) HE Z B A ¥
(=)
(=2
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 15,655 for Commercial 100% §
part of the level 1 and the Lujiazui offices and gn
whole of level 3 to 5 of the Finance and podium; 1:
commercial podium and 141 Trade Zone 7,594 for =
car parking spaces of car parks 2
Tomson Commercial Building, —
710 Dongfang Road =
Lujiazui Finance and Trade g
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China =
SEINEL R S P U o BERRMS 00% -
e K W < il B ) I ROy B " 5 I 15,655 2
71098 5 F 4 Ok 31 3th J3E 2-2- 195 B 5K 5 £
ETLES PU T ET B ) :
G R EY R 7,594°F 75 K 5
14116 361 B £
g
=]
The whole of level 1 to 3 Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,199 for Commercial 100% a
of the commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free offices and
4/F., 8/F. to 12/F., 14/E,, Trade Zone podium;
17/E. to 25/F. and part of 4,299 for
7/F. and 12A/F. of the car parks
office tower and 105 car
parking spaces of Tomson 156
International Trade Building,
No. 1 Jilong Road
Waigaoqiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e AR LA B L v R R Hb e A PR [ a1k ] BYMEWEY W 100%
T L A1 g A DR I 5 o % 1 908 C3-001 %% Hh Bt 36,199
W LB [ o) KA 55 R N
EAER) NS NN HER: K s
41~ SME 120 - 1448 - 178 4,299°F 75 K
R2SHERE K7L 1 2AKE 2

HB A5 Bz 10518 1A B A7




Schedule of Principal Properties
LRYEER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y
As at 31st December, 2009 * —EFZJU4FE T —H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AREMFH Wk a0
(Continued)
Investment Properties (Continued) BEWE )
Approximate
Gross
= Term of Floor Area Group’s
] Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
: 1 4 4 A A4
o Wk b B 5 9% AL mE CEGk) H® Z %
=
<
o Whole of level 1 to 4 of Lot 1/1, Medium term 11,903 for Commercial 95%
g' the commercial podium and 244 Street, offices and
> 136 car parking spaces of Zhangjiabangjiedao, podium;
§ Tomson Business Centre, Lujiazui Finance 5,054 for
= 158, 188, 228 Zhangyang and Trade Zone car parks
E Road, Lujiazui Finance and
= Trade Zone, Pudong New
Z» Area,
Shanghai,
: People’s Republic of China
B e N\ RGN B L i T R e 5% W 4 il 2 ) i Hy#kmy mE 95%
£ T [ [P 5 W < R ) [ I 5% 5% 18 i 4 11,903
Z RMFH158 - 188 ~ 228%5% 2441 i1/ & -5 K
2 3 5 7 o A
g SB1 2408 2 g K 1360810 HAL 5,054°F 77 K
3
= Towers B & part of Tower C, Lot No. 1 Long term 36,289 Residential 100%
g Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang,
= 28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i RGBT R A [ % =1 36,289 & 100%
T [ o 5 W <5 i R ) [ 17 37 1 5% 4 B
157 T [ 7 46 e 28 55 0 B —
BHBR S CHf 2 FB A5y
Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 109,359 Industrial 100%
Park, No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi 19 Jiefang,
Road, 27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaoqiao
358 Futebei Road, Free Trade
Waigaoqiao Free Trade Zone, Zone

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

rREE N\ R RN R A = A R A R Y 109,359 T 100%
S L A1 A PR B I R 19585 1/1 M
P 514381 2383 5% 1/4

FE 07 K295k~ B AL
35855 A G T 26 [ [




Schedule of Principal Properties

HRPER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y
As at 31st December, 2009 A - EELE+—H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP ALMEEH W% )
(Continued)
Golf Course i R BRI
Approximate
Gross =
Term of Floor Area Group’s g
Description Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest &
1o 20 0 B i AgM 2
a1 AL Wi (V7 K ) i 2 i 2 P
<
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium Club Houses, An 18-hole 100% §
No. 1 Long Dong Avenue, driving range golf course b
Pudong New Area, and maintenance -
Shanghai, room of 12,652 E
People’s Republic of China with site area of %
952,154 E
oo RSB 13 GFBEAR  ISRMEK 00% =
HE SR KB 1 B R 98 5 £ 55 =
ACES=SC) 12,6527 % £
S 3
$952,154F- 75 E
g
£

158




Schedule of Principal Properties
B 27E 5.5

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y
As at 31st December, 2009 * —EFZJU4FE T —H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP A E R Z W3 )
(Continued)
Properties under development B YE
Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
gl Lot Site Area Floor Area Group’s Stage of Date of
§ Description Number (Sq.m.) (Sq.m.) Use Interest Completion Completion
o PTrTY
S WA s A AEH fhivtz
E Gl B CEak)  CEIk) ik P4 56 0 B B 56 H
&
N A piece of land between Lot 1/2, 96,700 58,600 Residential 70% Phase Il Tomson 2010
% Jianping Road and Sanba He 15 Jiefang, and Riviera Garden
= in Pudong New Area, Huamu club house is under
% Shanghai, Zhen, construction
z People’s Republic of China Pudong
New Area
: PEARLAN LEHATE — HRRE 96,700 58,600 EEREH  70% BoMER “F-%E
E R0 EVNT] fE A e’
“; ZH It 15/ EfERE T
'fg: 128
§ A piece of land near the B-2 and 340,000 = Golf course 100% Part of the land Please refer to the
2 junction of Lou Shan Road B-13-4 relocation work ~ note at the end of
& and Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao- completed this Schedule on
g Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, Zhangjiang page 162.
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, District
People’s Republic of China
PEARSTE EBERTE  SE-RILE 340,000 - REAHKS  100% s A2 H%162H
18 — iR VI I A0 A 1L B T B-231 1 J% HELE RINRR LI o
ERKERR 2~ B-13-4#f1 & C5Em
1 5 9 A piece of land near the B-2 and 680,000 299,300 Residential — 70% Part of the land ~ Please refer to the
junction of Lou Shan Road B-13-4 houses relocation work note at the end of
and Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao- completed this Schedule on
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, Zhangjiang page 162.
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, District
People’s Republic of China
PEARLTE LEHRTE  &B-RITE 680,000 299,300 EEME  70% L w2 M 1628
16— R VL I R A0 L B-23 5 HELE RIURR LWt o

RERRELR 22—t B-13-431 & B




Schedule of Principal Properties

HRPER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y

As at 31st December, 2009 * —EFZJU4FE T —H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

ARG F AT W2 1)

(Continued)
Properties held for sale (ENEL7ES
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HE &Y A8 B i A 4R 1
wE 1 b B i % ALY mA CFik) Mg Z W%
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/F., Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
11/E, 17/F. of Tomson Lujiazui
Commercial Building Finance and
710 Dongfang Road Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e NRILAE] EdE R bR 8 3,039 [ 100%
I 5 W < il B ) [ Ry B o 8
7105555 Fo B Rl K L6 = 74 2-2-15 b B
10~ T1HE K 1748 2 8 47y
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035 Commercial 100%
and 16/F. of Waigaoqiao
Tomson International Free Trade
Trade Building Zone
No. 1 Jilong Road,
Waigaoqiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e AR ILFN R R b e A PR B I i 4,035 CES 100%

B 4 1= A DR I 3 [ B
198 o 2 B 5 K st
61~ 158 M 1618 2 T4y

C3-001 5% H1 B
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HRPER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y
As at 31st December, 2009 * —EFZJU4FE T —H=1—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AREMFEH ZWE )

(Continued)

Properties held for sale (Concinued) HEWE w)

Approximate

— Gross
é Term of Floor Area Group’s
; Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
E FEE 4440 AL
g Wk b B i % ALY mACF oK) g Z W%
-
8 Towers A, D & part of Tower C, Lot No. 1 Long-term 63,507 Residential 100%
% Tomson Riviera, 17 Jiefang,
E 28 Huayuanshigiao Road, Meiyuan Road
?; Lujiazui Finance and Trade
& Zone,

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,

5 People’s Republic of China
- IE NS I N T s 17 [ 17 6795 = 63,507 fr 100%
x 7 59 B 13 0 Bt
& 1 B8 7 1 B 285 1 B —
S AR~ DK CHRZ #4
&
&
g Phases VI & VIII Tomson Lot 23/10 Long-term 914 Residential 100%
Golf Villas, 1 Long Dong Tong Le Cun,
Avenue, Pudong New Area, Hua Mu Xiang
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
N ROIE AN B b ORI AE R[] 4E A =M 914 (e 100%
161 ORGSR AR BISE 23/108
CIRVE VN ]
Part of Tomson Riviera Garden, Lot 3, 15 Jiefang, Long-term 848 Residential 70%
Lane 2255, Luoshan Road, Huamu Zhen,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New
Shanghai, Area
People’s Republic of China
rh e R LA B E i ORI R R A AR B =#H 848 £ 70%

111 522555 5 B E AE 154553
2 wB Ay




Schedule of Principal Properties

HRPER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity AR A& MIERA Y

As at 31st December, 2009

CEFAE AT

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

ARG F AT W2 1)

(Continued)
Properties held for sale (Concinued) HEWE w)
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HBE 46 28 A i ARSI
ik i H BBt i % AL i it CF75K) s Z HE i
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 470 for Residential 100%
167 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun residential;
Tomson Golf Garden, 1 Long Jingiaozhen, 5,205 for car
Dong Avenue, (2 of North Pudong New parks
District), Pudong New Area, Area
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
N RIEME AR R RO R Ak R fEE470 £ 100%
HE R R B 198 (Je2l@) ¥ B EAR47/1 RV
1o AT R AL [ B R FIE 2 B Ay A EE A
LA B 16718 36 A 5,205°F-J5 K
PROPERTIES HELD BY A JOINTLY AREERAEZYME
CONTROLLED ENTITY
Properties held for investment LY (X4 Ed
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HBE 4 A8 B i 7 4 1
il o B 5 5% AL i § CFJ5 k) g Z Hi %
Hotel Inter-Continental Lot 12 Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
Pudong Shanghai Zhangyang Road
777 Zhangyang Road, Lujiazui Commercial
Finance and Trade Zone, District
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
Hh e N B SER B E E ROR  fR  SR R A 52,622 5 50%
e 5% W 2l 51 ) W R M 777 129 B
S8 L v B VL B U R
Nore: i3

The development plans are still under review, and prior to their finalisation,

the completion time for these property projects cannot be estimated at this

stage.

BT W B I AR b 7E 5% S R B GE SR - B A
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Five-Year Financial Summary

i 45 B 5 Bk

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT oy NS

Year Ended 31st December
BETZHET—HILEE

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
“ZFLE CEEAE ZFTLE CFETAE ZEFRUA
HK$000  HKS000 — HK$000 — HKS000 HK$000
Fi#T T T T T#x

=
§ Gross proceeds from operations A 496,657 446,627 785,270 2,386,932 703,475
©
B
2 Profit before taxation B il i 233,992 184,860 3,646,058 1,105,368 3,190,846
£ Taxation BLIH (28,166) (238,244)  (1,060,842) (484,369)  (1,798,059)
5
2 Profit (Loss) for the year EEE (ER) 205,826 (53,384) 2,585,216 620,999 1,392,787
2
& Attributable to: JELE T
g Owners of the Company E/NGIL 2t 2SN 203,664 (55,506) 2,588,314 451,986 1,387,406
= Minority interests WO 2,162 2,122 (3,098) 169,013 5,381
=
§ 205,826 (53,384) 2,585,216 620,999 1,392,787
a2
_ e .
>  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF #3r WB5IR DL
g FINANCIAL POSITION
=
-E At 31st December
é BR+=H=+—H
S 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
= ZEERE ZEEAFE ZEFLFE ZFENE ZEBAE
& HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HK$°000
g Tikor Tl Tikor Tl T#rx
Fixed assets It 2 B 1,321,261 1,422,770 6,136,451 6,498,921 5,925,124
Lease premium for land T EER 871,172 908,607 502,057 82,080 249,420
Properties under development BRERYE 1,004,174 835,374 34,732 - -
Intangible assets I B E = = 4,612 = =
Goodwill 7 2 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets I AR JE & 5,626 603 2,027 873 2,090
163 Interests in associates and jointly N k- UNCD
controlled entities EELEIHER 123,619 154,602 217,648 234,311 192,016
Available-for-sale investments o[ fit B 112,409 229,215 151,807 97,860 132,632
Other assets Hib & 4,033 - - - -
Pledged deposits HE A7 77 7K 9,024 6,958 = = =
Net current assets B E R E 377,856 993,008 1,481,162 2,429,882 5,413,662

3,862,462 4,584,425 8,563,784 9,377,215 11,948,232

Equity attributable to owners AN AER A A

of the Company JAE A5 BE £ 3,632,957 3,998,421 7,042,304 7,853,606 9,265,792
Minority interests h B R HE A 150,812 158,231 166,636 339,306 344,539
Total equity EY 3,783,769 4,156,652  7,208940 8,192,912 9,610,331
Long-term bank borrowings RIIRAT & K - 348,086 363,054 192,809 319,209
Deferred tax liabilities R IE A 1 78,693 79,687 991,790 991,494 2,018,692

3,862,462 4,584,425 8,563,784 9,377,215 11,948,232
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